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SUMMARY OF INPUTS RELATED TO 1984 THROUGH 1992 JEEP CHEROKEE/WAGONEER (XJ) VEHICLES

Name VIN

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice
1. 1JCMT754XHT 
2. 1J4FJ58S0ML 
3. 1JCMT783XJT 
4. 1J4FJ58S3NL  (2) 
5. 1J4FJ28S4ML 
6. 1J4FT38L4KL 
7. 1JCWB7812GT 
8. 1JCMR7833HT 
9. 1JCUX7813FT 

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice

VOQ Inputs
(Name)

SUBTOTALS

0 2 VINs
(
also was
a claim)

7 1 0 0

TOTAL 9 unique inputs 9 unique VINs

20,687,319.1\142778-00045
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MATTER # 1019654

FILE TYPE Lawsuit

FILE NAME

CAIR #

DATE OF
INCIDENT

01/07/1997

DATE OF NOTICE 01/10/1997

MODEL/MODEL
YEAR

1987 Jeep Wagoneer (XJ)

VIN 1JCMT754XHT

MILEAGE

OWNER

Elk River, MN

COURT 10th Judicial District Court, Sherburne, MN

DOCKET # 1019654

FIRE ALLEGED Yes

DESCRIPTION On January 7, 1997, a 1987 Jeep Wagoneer (XJ), operated by
, was travelling on County Road 15 in Big Lake

Township, Minnesota. The posted speed limit at the site of the
accident was 55 mph. According to the police accident report, the
Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) was travelling southbound on County Road 15,
which was extremely slippery at the time because of snowy
conditions. The driver of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) saw a 1989 Ford
Probe had slid to a stop on the southbound shoulder before a railroad
crossing to avoid a passing train. The Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) was
unable to stop before its front end slid into the rear of the Ford Probe.
Both drivers were standing outside their vehicles after exchanging
insurance information when a 1994 Geo Prizm, operated by

, also southbound on County Road 15, was unable to stop for
the two vehicles and the right-front of the Geo Prizm struck the left-
rear of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ). In a transcribed statement to the
Sherburne County Sheriff’s office, stated that she was
travelling 30-35 mph at the time of the collision. The impact pushed
the front end of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) into the right side of the Ford
Probe. A fire in the area of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) ensued.

PROPERTY
DAMAGE ALLEGED

No

INJURIES 4

FATALITIES 1

ANALYSIS The 1987 Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) was not inspected. Based on the
available information, including the police accident report, witness
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statements and vehicle photographs, Chrysler Group concludes that
the impact of the Geo Prizm with the left-rear of the Jeep Wagoneer
(XJ) occurred at a relative velocity of 30-35 mph. This is based on the
statement by the driver of the Geo Prizm. As a result of this severe,
high-energy impact, the front end of the Geo Prizm likely rode under
the left-rear bumper of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) puncturing the left-
rear of the fuel tank causing the fuel leakage and the fire. There was
severe damage to the front end of the Geo Prizm with the front
bumper torn off of its attachment to the front cross member. The
bumper attachment bracket on the right-front of the Geo Prizm was
exposed with sharp angled edges. The investigating police officer
concluded that it was possible that the bracket was the cause of the
fuel tank puncture. The interposition of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ)
between the Geo Prizm and the Ford Probe likely increased the crash
forces acting on the rear of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ) and contributed
to the underride. The damage to the rear of the Jeep Wagoneer (XJ)
and the front of the Geo Prizm is depicted in the photographs in
Enclosure 3 Public, Bates page numbers EA12-005 – Chrysler –
006894 and 6879.
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SUMMARY OF INPUTS RELATED TO 1984 THROUGH 1992 JEEP CHEROKEE/WAGONEER (XJ) VEHICLES

Name VIN

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice
1. 1JCMT754XHT 
2. 1J4FJ58S0ML 
3. 1JCMT783XJT 
4. 1J4FJ58S3NL  (2) 
5. 1J4FJ28S4ML 
6. 1J4FT38L4KL 
7. 1JCWB7812GT 
8. 1JCMR7833HT 
9. 1JCUX7813FT 

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice

VOQ Inputs
(Name)

SUBTOTALS

0 2 VINs

also was
a claim)

7 1 0 0

TOTAL 9 unique inputs 9 unique VINs

20,687,319.1\142778-00045
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Customer Assistance Inquiry Record (CAIR)# 13106771  

VIN 1J4FJ58S3 NL Open Date 01/27/2005 Built Date 06/10/1992

Model Year 1992 Body XJJL74 JEEP CHEROKEE

In Service Dt 05/29/2003 Mileage 1 Dealer Zone 42 DETROIT

Plant L TOLEDO ASSEMBLY PLANT I (MAIN-PARKWAY) Market U US
 

Dealer 26334 SOUTHFIELD CHRYSLER PLYMOUTH JEEP  EAGLE

Dealer Address 28100 TELEGRAPH ROAD

Dealer City SOUTHFIELD Dealer State MI Dealer Zip 48034
 

Owner Contact Type TELEPHONE

Address Home Phone  

  FRIDLEY MN Country UNITED STATES

Corporate - Property Damage - Default - Default - Default  
Product - Unknown - Unknown - Accident - Default  
Product - Unknown - Unknown - Fire - Unknown  

fire in vehicle,Atty has unit in storage. Vehicle also involved in accident
refer to 82t
1/28/05 Attorney letter.
1/28/05 Forwarded to Warranty Litigation-dt.
2.02.2005
JOHNSON & LINDBERG, P.A.
Seeking a response to their january 14, 2005 letter.
forwarded to 82t m rp
2/3/05 Forwarded to Warranty Litigation-dt.
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Customer Assistance Inquiry Record (CAIR)# 13142564  

VIN 1J4FJ58S3 NL Open Date 02/04/2005 Built Date 06/10/1992

Model Year 1992 Body XJJL74 JEEP CHEROKEE

In Service Dt 05/29/2003 Mileage 2 Dealer Zone 42 DETROIT

Plant L TOLEDO ASSEMBLY PLANT I (MAIN-PARKWAY) Market U US
 

Dealer 26334 SOUTHFIELD CHRYSLER PLYMOUTH JEEP  EAGLE

Dealer Address 28100 TELEGRAPH ROAD

Dealer City SOUTHFIELD Dealer State MI Dealer Zip 48034
 

Owner Contact Type TELEPHONE

Address Home Phone (  

  FRIDLEY MN Country UNITED STATES

Product - Unknown - Unknown - Fire - Unknown Owner alleges vehicle bursted into flames.

2/4/05 Claimant states that he was involved in an accident with a
92 Jeep Cherokee when the Jeep burst into flames. Vehicle is
located at South East Towing 7401 East Kickman Trail, Inver Grove Heights,
MN 55076 (651) 451-9721. Stock number is vehicle plate which is Minnesota

. Claimant's attorney must be notified of inspection date. OONTACT
CLAIMANT'S ATTORNEY, JOHN R. CRAWFORD AT 952 851-0700. dt
CAIR NUMBER 13142564 REQUEST EAA INSPECTION 02-04-2005 11:47
CAIR NUMBER 13142564 E-MAIL SENT TO EAA 02-04-2005 11:48
2/4/05 Assigned to rah21. dt
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MATTER # 1152199

FILE TYPE Legal Claim and Customer Assistance Inquiry Report

FILE NAME

CAIR # 13106771, 13142564

DATE OF
INCIDENT

01/07/2005

DATE OF NOTICE 01/28/2005

MODEL/MODEL
YEAR

1992 Jeep Cherokee (XJ)

VIN 1J4FJ58S3NL

MILEAGE

OWNER

Fridley, MN

COURT

DOCKET #

FIRE ALLEGED Yes

DESCRIPTION According to the police accident report, on January 7, 2005 a 1992
Jeep Cherokee (XJ), operated by had stopped in traffic
backed up from a train crossing on Highway 52 in Inver Grove
Heights, Minnesota. The posted speed limit at the site of the accident
was 65 mph. A 2002 Peterbilt tractor/trailer, driven by ,
approaching the traffic backup, swerved to the right to avoid the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ). The left side of the trailer struck the right-rear of the
Jeep Cherokee (XJ), causing the front end of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ)
to strike the rear of a 1991 Toyota vehicle and a 1989 Dodge vehicle.
A fire ensued in the Jeep Cherokee (XJ).

PROPERTY
DAMAGE ALLEGED

No

INJURIES 3

FATALITIES 1

ANALYSIS The 1992 Jeep Cherokee (XJ) was not inspected. Information
contained in the police accident report and photographs are not
sufficient for Chrysler Group to determine a likely relative velocity at
impact between the Peterbilt tractor/trailer and the Jeep Cherokee
(XJ). However, Chrysler Group notes that the posted speed limit at
the site of the accident was 65 mph and the right-rear and side of the
Jeep Cherokee (XJ) experienced extremely severe deformation,
including partially or completely separating the rear axle from its
attachment points. Such collision forces are consistent with high
relative impact velocity. Because of the right-rear offset impact to the
Jeep Cherokee (XJ) and the extremely high mass of the Peterbilt
tractor/trailer, the collision forces acting on the rear of the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ) were greatly increased. Because it has not inspected

EA12-005- Chrysler -006406



the Jeep Cherokee (XJ), Chrysler Group is unable to confirm that, as a
result of the rear impact, the fuel tank ruptured or that the origin of
the fire was at the fuel tank. The damage to the rear of the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ) is depicted in the photographs in Enclosure 3 Public,
Bates page numbers EA12-005 – Chrysler – 006336 and 6339.

EA12-005- Chrysler -006407



SUMMARY OF INPUTS RELATED TO 1984 THROUGH 1992 JEEP CHEROKEE/WAGONEER (XJ) VEHICLES

Name VIN

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice
1. 1JCMT754XHT 
2. 1J4FJ58S0ML 
3. 1JCMT783XJT 
4. 1J4FJ58S3NL  (2) 
5. 1J4FJ28S4ML 
6. 1J4FT38L4KL 
7. 1JCWB7812GT 
8. 1JCMR7833HT 
9. 1JCUX7813FT 

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice

VOQ Inputs
(Name)

SUBTOTALS

0 2 VINs
(
also was
a claim)

7 1 0 0

TOTAL 9 unique inputs 9 unique VINs

20,687,319.1\142778-00045

EA12-005- Chrysler -023666
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MATTER # 1016170

FILE TYPE Lawsuit

FILE NAME

CAIR #

DATE OF
INCIDENT

06/20/1993

DATE OF NOTICE 03/27/1996

MODEL/MODEL
YEAR

1991 Jeep Cherokee (XJ)

VIN 1J4FJ28S4ML

MILEAGE

OWNER

West Chester, PA

COURT U.S. District Court, District of Maryland

DOCKET # CCB96833

FIRE ALLEGED Yes

DESCRIPTION On June 20, 1993, a 1991 Jeep Cherokee (XJ), operated by
, was travelling northbound on I-95 near Savage,

Maryland. The posted speed limit at the site of the accident was 55
mph. The Jeep Cherokee (XJ) had pulled over on the left shoulder
directly behind a 1991 Ford U-Haul truck, operated by

husband, . According to the police accident report,
a 1992 Nissan Maxima, operated by , was also travelling
northbound on I-95 when it struck the rear of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ)
at a high rate of speed. A witness to the accident prepared a written
statement that the Nissan Maxima was travelling approximately 60
mph at the time of the collision. The driver of the Nissan Maxima
prepared a written statement that he was travelling 55 mph when he
looked down to say goodnight to his son sleeping in the front
passenger seat and the next thing he remembered was hitting the
Jeep Cherokee (XJ). It is unclear from the witness statements, but
the Nissan Maxima may have crossed one or more lanes of travel
before hitting the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) in the left-rear corner. The
impact pushed the front end of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) into the rear of
the U-Haul truck. A fire ensued in the Jeep Cherokee (XJ).

PROPERTY
DAMAGE ALLEGED

No

INJURIES 4

FATALITIES 0

ANALYSIS The 1991 Jeep Cherokee (XJ) was not inspected. Based on the
available information, including the police accident report, witness

EA12-005- Chrysler -007307



statements and vehicle photographs, Chrysler Group concludes that
the impact of the Nissan Maxima with the left-rear of the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ) occurred at a relative velocity of 55 mph or greater.
This is supported by the witness statements regarding the speed of
the Nissan Maxima at the time of the collision and the fact that the
Jeep Cherokee (XJ) was stopped on the side of the road. The
interposition of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) between the Nissan Maxima
and the U-Haul truck during the impact and the left-rear offset impact
to the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) likely increased the crash forces acting on
the rear of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ). The likely cause of the accident
was inattention by the driver of the Nissan Maxima. Because Chrysler
Group has not inspected the Jeep Cherokee (XJ), it is unable to
confirm that the fuel tank was ruptured in the accident or that the
origin of the fire was at the fuel tank.

EA12-005- Chrysler -007308



SUMMARY OF INPUTS RELATED TO 1984 THROUGH 1992 JEEP CHEROKEE/WAGONEER (XJ) VEHICLES

Name VIN

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice
1. 1JCMT754XHT 
2. 1J4FJ58S0ML 
3. 1JCMT783XJT 
4. 1J4FJ58S3NL  (2) 
5. 1J4FJ28S4ML 
6. 1J4FT38L4KL 
7. 1JCWB7812GT 
8. 1JCMR7833HT 
9. 1JCUX7813FT 

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice

VOQ Inputs
(Name)

SUBTOTALS

0 2 VINs
(
also was
a claim)

7 1 0 0

TOTAL 9 unique inputs 9 unique VINs

20,687,319.1\142778-00045
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1 STATE OF TEXAS

2 IN THE 23RD JUDICIAL DISTRICT, BRAZORIA COUNTY

3

4 BONMEE SIHANOURAJ, et al.,

5 Plaintiffs,

6 vs.

7 Civil Action

8 AUGUSTINE AROCHA, et al., No. 94-C-0653

9 Defendants.

10 __________________________/

11 APPEARANCES:

12 PERRY & HAAS,

13 2300 Texas Commerce Plaza, P.O. Box 1500,

14 Corpus Christi, Texas 78403-1500.

15 BY: MIKAL C. WATTS.

16 And

17 SUSMAN GODFREY, L.L.P.,

18 5100 First Interstate Bank Plaza,

19 1000 Louisiana, Houston, Texas 77002-5096.

20 BY: MICHAEL A. LEE.

21 For the Plaintiffs.

22

23

24 VIDEOTAPE DEPOSITION OF DENNIS RENNEKER

25 (Taken February 2, 1995)

1EA12-005- Chrysler -034275



1 APPEARANCES (Continued):

2 MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK & STONE,

3 150 West Jefferson, Suite 2500,

4 Detroit, Michigan 48226-4415.

5 BY: STEPHEN J. OTT.

6 And

7 CHRYSLER MOTORS CORPORATION,

8 12000 Chrysler Drive, CIMS 413-05-10,

9 Highland Park, Michigan 48288-1919.

10 BY: LOUANN VAN DER WIELE.

11 For the Defendant Chrysler Corporation.

12 BARNARD & WOODBURN, L.L.P.,

13 Amarillo National Bank Building, Plaza I,

14 Suite 1002, Amarillo, Texas 79105.

15 For the Defendant Brahme.

16 BY: GARY W. BARNARD.

17 PASSMAN & JONES, P.C., 2500 Renaissance Tower,

18 Dallas, Texas 75270.

19 For the Defendant Town West Ford, Inc.

20 BY: CLARK GREEN.

21 TEKELL, BOOK, MATTHEWS & LIMMER, L.L.P.,

22 3600 Two Houston Center, Houston, Texas 77010.

23 For the Defendant Arocha.

24 BY: TODD A. KISSNER.

25 ALSO PRESENT: Norman Calfin, Video Technician

2
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1 The videotape deposition of DENNIS RENNEKER, a

2 witness in the above-entitled cause, taken before

3 Diane L. Szach, Certified Shorthand Reporter and

4 Notary Public in and for Oakland County, Michigan,

5 at 29580 Northwestern Highway, Suite 110,

6 Southfield, Michigan, on the 2nd day of February,

7 1995, commencing at 9:00 o'clock A.M., pursuant to

8 the Texas Court Rules.

9

10 I N D E X

11 PAGE

12 Examination by Mr. Watts 5

13

14 E X H I B I T S

15 MARKED

16 Deposition Exhibit 162 7

17 Deposition Exhibit 163 28

18 Deposition Exhibit 164 66

19 Deposition Exhibit 165 66

20 Deposition Exhibit 166 110

21 Deposition Exhibit 167 119

22

23

24

25

3
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1 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: This is the

2 videotape deposition of Chrysler Corporation by and

3 through Dennis Renneker, Case No. 94-C-0653 being

4 taken at National Court Reporting, 29580

5 Northwestern Highway, Suite 110, Southfield,

6 Michigan. Today's date is February 2nd, 1995 and

7 the time is 9:06:09. My name is Norm Calfin, Video

8 Technician for Personna Video located in West

9 Bloomfield, Oakland County, Michigan.

10 Will the attorneys please

11 introduce themselves.

12 MR. WATTS: My name is Mikal

13 Watts. I represent the plaintiffs.

14 MR. LEE: My name is Michael Lee

15 for the plaintiffs.

16 MR. BARNARD: Gary Barnard for

17 third-party defendant, Mr. Brahme.

18 MR. KISSNER: Todd Kissner for

19 Mr. Arocha.

20 MR. GREEN: Clark Green for Town

21 West Ford Sales, Inc.

22 MS. VAN DER WIELE: Louann

23 Van Der Wiele for Chrysler Corporation.

24 MR. OTT: Steve Ott representing

25 Chrysler Corporation, and for purposes of the
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1 record, I think perhaps contrary to the

2 announcement, this is not the deposition of Chrysler

3 Corporation through Mr. Renneker but in fact of

4 Mr. Renneker.

5 MR. WATTS: I agree with that.

6 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Will the court

7 reporter please swear in the witness.

8 (Whereupon the witness was

9 sworn).

10 DENNIS RENNEKER

11 having been first duly sworn was examined and

12 testified on his oath as follows:

13 EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. WATTS:

15 Q. What is your name, please?

16 A. Dennis Renneker.

17 Q. Mr. Renneker, my name is Mikal Watts. I'm an

18 attorney from Corpus Christi, Texas. You understand

19 that we're here to take your deposition in

20 conjunction with a lawsuit that my firm has filed on

21 behalf of two families down in Texas arising out of

22 a rear end collision that occurred in 1993 in

23 Houston, Texas in which a fuel fed fire resulted and

24 three people burned alive in a 1986 Jeep Cherokee?

25 A. I'm sorry, is that a question?
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1 Q. Yes. The question is do you understand that that's

2 why we're here to take your deposition?

3 A. Yes, I do.

4 Q. All right. Before we get into the crux of your

5 testimony and what you know about the specific facts

6 relating to the vehicle, I want to get some

7 background information from you. First of all, what

8 is an address that you can be reached at?

9 A. My current address is 1189 Foxwood Court in

10 Bloomfield Hills, Michigan.

11 Q. What's the zip code there?

12 A. 48304.

13 Q. And a phone number you can be reached at?

14 A. Area code 810 852-6753.

15 Q. Mr. Renneker, the Subpoena Duces Tecum attached to

16 you deposition notice asked that you bring a

17 curriculum vitae or some sort of a personal history

18 and description of your job histories in the past.

19 Do you have such a document with you?

20 A. No, I don't. The only document I had was the

21 corporate personal history record.

22 Q. Okay.

23 MR. WATTS: Do we have that?

24 MR. OTT: I do not have it, no.

25 MR. WATTS: Okay.

6
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1 MR. OTT: We did ask if he had a

2 current personal resume, and I understood that he

3 did not.

4 MR. WATTS: All right.

5 (Deposition Exhibit 162 was

6 marked for identification).

7 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Let me hand you Discovery Exhibit

8 No. 162 which I'll mark as Plaintiffs' Notice of the

9 Oral Deposition Duces Tecum of the witness Dennis

10 Renneker. Have you seen that document before?

11 A. No, I haven't.

12 Q. Okay. The Subpoena Duces Tecum attached to that

13 document asked that you bring a curriculum vitae,

14 and that's okay that you didn't bring it because

15 I've read other depositions that you've given, but

16 it also asks that you bring any documents in your

17 possession relating to the design and the

18 development of the XJ vehicle or the Jeep Cherokee

19 and Wagoneer. Do you have any such documents in

20 your possession?

21 A. No, I don't.

22 Q. Are you aware of any such documents presently in

23 existence?

24 A. Well, when I left the job in which I was working on

25 at Cherokee, I left the documents relative to it in

7
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1 my office to my -- the person that took my job. So

2 I'm sure they're in the corporate records somewhere.

3 Q. In a minute we're going to get into your job

4 history, but there was a point in time I believe in

5 September of 1981 when you changed job functions

6 from the director of advanced vehicle engineering of

7 American Motors to the director of drive train

8 engineering, is that right?

9 A. That's right.

10 Q. And is that the point in time in which you're saying

11 that any documents that you had relating to the

12 design and development of the Jeep Cherokee would

13 have been left with your successor?

14 A. Well, the documents relative to that job, when I

15 went to drive train engineering, I worked on the

16 drive train of the Cherokee, so there would have

17 been other documents there.

18 Q. Fair enough. All right. Let me get a little

19 background information on you. As I understand it

20 you went to college at the General Motors Institute?

21 A. That's right.

22 Q. And you received a Bachelor's degree in mechanical

23 engineering?

24 A. Yes, I did.

25 Q. Then you also went to the Massachusetts Institute of

8
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1 Technology where you received a Master's degree in

2 mechanical engineering?

3 A. That's right.

4 Q. When you got out of school, where did you go to

5 work?

6 A. I went to work at the Chevrolet Division of General

7 Motors.

8 Q. And what year would that be, sir?

9 A. That would have been 1963.

10 Q. Okay. And how long did you work for the Chevrolet

11 Division of General Motors?

12 A. Well, I started working there in 1958. I was

13 employed by them as -- while I was going to General

14 Motors Institute. I quit and went to Chrysler in

15 1964.

16 Q. One of the things that General Motors requires or

17 that General Motors Institute requires is that you

18 have some sort of an automotive industry sponsor to

19 put you through school, is that right?

20 A. Well, at that time you had to be hired by a General

21 Motors division.

22 Q. All right. And in conjunction with that

23 requirement, you worked for the Chevrolet Division

24 while you were going through college?

25 A. That's right.

9
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1 Q. After you got out of college, what was it that was

2 your first postgraduate job?

3 A. When I went back to work for Chevrolet -- it was a

4 long time ago -- I believe I was in the computer

5 analysis group.

6 Q. How long did you work for Chevrolet after getting

7 out of college?

8 A. Just a year or year and a half.

9 Q. And that would take us sometime into 1964. Where

10 did you go to work then?

11 A. I went to work for Chrysler Corporation.

12 Q. Okay. In 1964 when you went to work for Chrysler

13 Corporation, what did you do for them?

14 A. I went to work in the advanced chassis engineering

15 group.

16 Q. All right, sir. And how long did you work as an

17 engineer in the advanced chassis group of Chrysler

18 Corporation?

19 A. I was in various functions of that group for ten

20 years.

21 Q. And in 1974, did you leave Chrysler to join the

22 American Motors Corporation?

23 A. Yes, I did.

24 Q. And in 1974 when you joined the American Motors

25 Corporation, was it in a position of chief engineer

10
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1 of advanced chassis engineering here at AMC?

2 A. Yes, it was.

3 Q. Okay. And at the American Motors Corporation, the

4 advanced chassis engineering group had primary

5 responsibility for what parts of the vehicle?

6 A. Well, we had responsibility for the advanced design

7 of any all new corporate vehicle, and the chassis

8 department did basically the chassis, frame, running

9 gear.

10 Q. Okay. When we talk about the chassis of a vehicle

11 and the responsibility that advanced chassis

12 engineering had at AMC at that time, would that

13 include things such as the frame, the fuel tank, the

14 exhaust system and surrounding structure?

15 A. Well, if there was a frame, certainly. Depends on

16 whether it's a unibody or not, but certainly the

17 fuel tank, exhaust system and we really had

18 responsibility for the overall packaging of the

19 vehicle.

20 Q. Okay. Assuming that there is a unibody vehicle that

21 you were working on, did you have responsibility for

22 the unibody construction as well?

23 A. Well, we had some responsibility to lay out the

24 basic structural members, but there was an advanced

25 body group that really had the detailed

11
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1 responsibility of designing actual sheet metal body

2 components.

3 Q. All right. Now, as I understand your work history,

4 you were the chief engineer of advanced chassis

5 engineering at AMC between 1974 and 1977, is that

6 correct?

7 A. That's right.

8 Q. And then at that point in time you got a promotion

9 and you were made the director of advanced vehicle

10 engineering of the American Motors Corporation?

11 A. That's right.

12 Q. And that promotion took place in 1977?

13 A. I believe so.

14 Q. Okay. And when you were promoted to the director of

15 advanced vehicle engineering of American Motors, did

16 that put you over the chief engineer for advanced

17 chassis engineering?

18 A. Yes, it did.

19 Q. What other functions were below you in your capacity

20 as director of advanced vehicle engineering?

21 A. It was always advanced chassis and advanced body. I

22 think at some -- we were always reorganizing. At

23 some points there was also some advanced development

24 group.

25 Q. Okay. So would it be fair for me to assume that as

12
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1 of about 1977, you were the person within the

2 American Motors Corporation that had direct

3 responsibility or at least oversight responsibility

4 over the advanced chassis work and the advanced body

5 work on future new vehicles being developed by the

6 company?

7 A. That's correct.

8 Q. Okay. And you remained the director of advanced

9 vehicle engineering until September of 1981, is that

10 right?

11 A. 1981. I'm not sure of the month.

12 Q. Okay. Do you have any more specific recollection?

13 I think you've testified in previous cases it was in

14 September, but I'm not going to hold you to it.

15 A. My memory is just not that good. It's 1981, I'm

16 sure of that.

17 Q. Okay. So from 1977 until sometime in 1981, you held

18 the job of director of advanced vehicle engineering?

19 A. That's correct.

20 Q. All right. And by the way, while you held that job,

21 did you have advanced drive train engineering below

22 you or was there such a beast within American

23 Motors?

24 A. No, there was no advanced drive train group.

25 Q. Okay. Now, in September of 1981, you changed your

13
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1 job function or kind of had a lateral move to

2 director of drive train engineering, is that right?

3 A. That's right.

4 Q. Now, before we have talk about what you did in drive

5 train engineering, would it be a correct statement

6 that advanced vehicle engineering is the department

7 within American Motors that has the job of creating

8 the initial designs of new corporate vehicles,

9 creating the design and building the prototypes,

10 taking that design to a certain point and then

11 handing it off to the production engineering people?

12 A. Yes. There was some difference at some point on how

13 prototypes were done, but in general that's an

14 accurate statement.

15 Q. All right, sir. And for example on the vehicle

16 which later became known as the Jeep Cherokee and

17 Wagoneer beginning with the 1984 model year, that

18 was a vehicle line with the code name XJ, is that

19 right?

20 A. That's right.

21 Q. And while you were the director of advanced vehicle

22 engineering at American Motors in the late 70's and

23 early 1980's, American Motors was conducting the

24 advanced vehicle engineering on the XJ line of

25 vehicles?

14
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1 A. That's right.

2 Q. If you would, sir, when did the advanced vehicle

3 engineering project for the XJ line begin?

4 A. I'm not sure. I don't really remember. It would

5 have been sometime in that time period.

6 Q. Okay. If documents produced suggest somewhere in

7 the 1979 time frame, would that comport with your

8 general recollection?

9 A. I would not argue with any data on a document. I

10 just don't -- my memory for dates is just not that

11 good.

12 Q. That's fine. Is your memory with dates good enough

13 to provide us with some idea as to when it was that

14 the advanced vehicle engineering department of

15 American Motors transferred responsibility for the

16 XJ program over to the production engineers?

17 A. Not really. I would have to look up documents.

18 Q. Okay. With regard to responsibility for fuel system

19 design on the XJ line of vehicles, would it be a

20 fair characterization that your direct

21 responsibility for the design as it effected the

22 fuel system integrity of the XJ vehicles ended when

23 advanced vehicle engineering transferred the XJ

24 product or project over to the production engineers?

25 A. Well, the responsibility of advanced vehicle

15
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1 engineering was to do the initial engineering of the

2 car, build a prototype, take it through some amount

3 of testing, inform the corporation of basically what

4 its characteristics were so they could make a

5 decision whether to go ahead with the project or

6 kill the project. At that point if the project went

7 ahead, it was transferred to the production

8 engineering group, so we didn't really finish the

9 design of anything. We basically did preliminary

10 design.

11 Q. Okay. Although you don't remember the specific

12 dates of the hand-off to the production engineers,

13 would it be safe for us to assume that by the time

14 you became the director of drive train engineering

15 in 1981, that that hand-off had already occurred?

16 A. I'm not sure that would be safe to assume.

17 Q. Okay. Do you recall a point in time after you

18 became the director of drive train engineering in

19 1981, that advanced engineering came to your office

20 and your successor said I am now transferring the XJ

21 project to you as one of the production engineers

22 responsible for drive train engineering?

23 A. Well, there was never an official meeting like

24 that. There were many periodic corporate meetings.

25 Sometimes transfer to one department happened at a
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1 different time than transfer to another department.

2 There would have been a time certainly when my group

3 and production drive train engineering started their

4 production design of the XJ -- of their XJ

5 components.

6 Q. All right. By the way, explain for the jury what a

7 drive train is and what drive train engineering did?

8 A. Drive train engineering had responsibility for

9 transmissions, clutches, prop shafts, axles, and I

10 believe at that time we had cooling systems and

11 exhaust systems.

12 Q. Did drive train engineering have direct

13 responsibility over the rear axle of the XJ?

14 A. Yes.

15 Q. Okay. And so the particular components attached to

16 the rear axle of the XJ vehicle would be under the

17 responsibility of drive train engineering?

18 A. Drive train engineering released the axle assembly.

19 There were things like springs and shock absorbers

20 that bolted to that axle assembly which would have

21 been released by the chassis department.

22 Q. Okay. Who had responsibility for the rear bumper

23 and the way it was fixed to the vehicle for example?

24 A. I believe that would have been body engineering.

25 Q. Okay. And who was the body engineer that had

17
EA12-005- Chrysler -034291



1 primary responsibility for the XJ?

2 A. I believe at that time it was a gentleman who I

3 believe has since passed away, Carl Mitchell.

4 Q. Okay. Mr. Renneker, have you reviewed any documents

5 in preparation for your deposition here today?

6 A. No, I haven't.

7 Q. Have you read any depositions?

8 A. No.

9 Q. Have you had an opportunity to have discussion with

10 Chrysler's attorneys in this case?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Okay. Are you presently employed by the Chrysler

13 Corporation?

14 A. Yes, I am.

15 Q. Are you employed by the Chrysler Corporation in such

16 a position that you have the authority to retain

17 legal counsel on behalf of American Motors or

18 Chrysler?

19 A. That's not my job function. Whether I'm entitled to

20 do that, I have no idea. I've never done it.

21 Q. As you understand your authority, it does not

22 include the ability to hire legal counsel on behalf

23 of the corporation?

24 A. That's probably true.

25 Q. Okay. Let me go back to your work history at AMC

18
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1 for a little bit. In 1983 did you leave drive train

2 engineering for another function?

3 A. Yes. I was transferred to chassis engineering.

4 Q. All right. And do you remember when it was in 1983

5 that you were transferred to chassis engineering?

6 A. No, I don't.

7 Q. Okay. Do you recall whether subsequent to the time

8 that you were transferred to chassis engineering,

9 whether you did any work on the original model year

10 of the XJ?

11 A. Yes, I'm sure I did. As an '84 model, the XJ would

12 have gone into production in summer of '83, so I'm

13 sure -- I was responsible for the final production

14 engineering of the drive train components.

15 Q. Okay. That was kind of a round about way for me to

16 ask you when was it in 1983 that you got transferred

17 to chassis because I don't know, but really my

18 question is were you transferred to chassis before

19 the vehicle went on line?

20 A. I don't remember.

21 Q. Okay.

22 A. No matter how many times you ask me, I still don't

23 remember.

24 Q. Well, I mean, if you have a specific recollection of

25 working on the XJ, then obviously you were

19

EA12-005- Chrysler -034293



1 transferred before. If you didn't, maybe you were

2 transferred after, and that's what I'm trying to

3 get. Do you have any recollection in your capacity

4 as the director of chassis engineering of working on

5 the XJ before it went on line?

6 A. Relative to the chassis of the car?

7 Q. Sure.

8 A. You're really confusing me here. Let me try to

9 explain exactly what I did, and then you can make

10 whatever you want to of it. From '81 to '83, I was

11 responsible for the drive train of the XJ. My group

12 designed that drive train, tested it, released it

13 for production and would have been into solving all

14 the production launch problems. At some point I

15 left that job and went to chassis. At that point

16 the chassis design would have been all completed by

17 my predecessor, and we would have been into a launch

18 phase, and I would have picked it up and stopped

19 working on drive train components and started on

20 chassis, whether that would have -- I don't see any

21 particular significance to whether that would have

22 happened a month before production, right at

23 production or a month after production.

24 Q. Well, the significance to me is I want to know

25 whether you were directly involved with any of the
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1 preproduction or prelaunch work on the chassis of

2 the XJ, and if you remember that you were, I'd like

3 for you to tell me, and if you don't, you can tell

4 me that as well.

5 A. No, I was not. Definitely any time during '83 if I

6 had been -- when I was transferred there, the

7 chassis work would have been all basically

8 completed, in tooling and in final launch.

9 Q. All right. Now, how long have you been the director

10 of chassis engineering of American Motors or how

11 long did you serve in that capacity?

12 A. From '83 to '86.

13 Q. And in 1986 what did you do?

14 A. Became director of body and electrical engineering I

15 believe.

16 Q. And how long did you serve in that capacity?

17 A. Until the -- until the purchase by Chrysler

18 Corporation. It would have been '87.

19 Q. And after the purchase of American Motors by the

20 Chrysler Corporation, did you go to work for

21 Chrysler?

22 A. Yes, I did.

23 Q. In what capacity?

24 A. At that point the basic American Motors group became

25 the Jeep Truck group of Chrysler Corporation. So I
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1 retained my body engineering responsibility for Jeep

2 Truck with Chrysler.

3 Q. And how long did you work as director of body

4 engineering for Jeep Truck of Chrysler?

5 A. I believe it was until '89, early '89.

6 Q. And in early 1989, what did you begin to do?

7 A. I was transferred to the large car platform of

8 Chrysler Corporation to work on the LH vehicles.

9 Q. And what was your job title when you were working on

10 the LH?

11 A. Executive engineer of body in white and chassis for

12 large car platform.

13 Q. How long did you work in that capacity?

14 A. Well, I'm basically back in that capacity now.

15 Q. Okay. So since 1989 you've basically worked in the

16 large car platform?

17 A. That's right.

18 Q. Working on body and electrical engineering issues?

19 A. Not electrical, body in white and chassis.

20 Q. Okay. And that's what you're presently doing today?

21 A. That's right.

22 Q. Okay. I want to take you back to the period in time

23 between 1977 and 1981 when you were the director of

24 advanced vehicle engineering of the American Motors

25 Corporation, and I want to ask you the types of

22
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1 decisions that advanced vehicle engineering made the

2 initial design decisions on. First of all, with

3 regard to where to locate the fuel tank on the XJ,

4 was that decision made by advanced vehicle

5 engineering?

6 A. Yes, it was.

7 Q. All right. With regard to the fuel tank volume or

8 the size of the fuel tank that was going to go with

9 the XJ, was that decision made by the advanced

10 vehicle engineering department?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. With regard to the material composition of the fuel

13 tank whether it be turn-plated steel or high density

14 polyethylene or some other material, was that

15 decision made by the advanced vehicle engineering

16 department?

17 A. It was, although some of those decisions could have

18 been later reversed by the production group had they

19 chosen to do that.

20 Q. Okay. The initial design decision with regard to

21 these matters was made by advanced vehicle

22 engineering?

23 A. That's correct.

24 Q. Okay. With regard to the clearance distances

25 between the fuel tank and other components of the

23
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1 chassis and body, were those decisions initially

2 made by the advanced vehicle engineering department?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. Okay. With regard to the decision of whether or not

5 to place a shield around part or all of the fuel

6 tank on the XJ, was that decision made by advanced

7 vehicle engineering?

8 A. Well, an initial decision -- we basically made

9 initial decisions and had to leave space. As far as

10 whether that would actually be designed, put on the

11 car and put in production, that's a decision that

12 would be made later by the production group.

13 Q. All right. Would it be a fair characterization that

14 the initial design decision whether or not to put a

15 shield on the vehicle would have been made by

16 advanced vehicle engineering?

17 A. That's right.

18 Q. Okay. And the initial design decision with regard

19 to how to clean up the environment around the fuel

20 tank so as to not allow it to present a hostile

21 environment in the event of a collision, were those

22 types of decisions made by advanced vehicle

23 engineering?

24 A. I'm not sure what you mean by clean up the

25 environment. We did the initial design of the
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1 automobile, layout of the components, where the fuel

2 tank went, where it was located relative to other

3 components.

4 Q. Okay. Let me see if I can't repeat a discussion I

5 had with Mr. Seidl about this issue. It's a basic

6 tentative chassis engineering that the fuel tank

7 ought not to be placed in close proximity with sharp

8 bolt heads, sharp corners, things that can perforate

9 or puncture the fuel tank in the event of a

10 collision, would you agree with that concept in

11 general?

12 A. Well, it's certainly a concern. You don't want your

13 fuel tank to be punctured in a foreseeable

14 situation.

15 Q. Yes. And really what I'm trying to get at is this

16 process of trying to make sure that there aren't

17 bolts facing towards the fuel tank or sharp corners

18 or things in close proximity to the fuel tank that

19 could puncture it in the event of a collision, was

20 that process -- were those initial design decisions

21 made in advanced vehicle engineering?

22 A. Well, partially. Advanced vehicle engineering

23 didn't do the production final design of anything.

24 We did preliminary packaging and built preliminary

25 prototypes. So we would have designed the fuel
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1 tank, placed it, and we would have had bolts and

2 things around it, but all those things would have

3 been redesigned before the vehicle went into

4 production or could -- in some cases the production

5 design looked exactly like the one that advanced

6 vehicle did sometimes. Some cases it would change.

7 So we did a preliminary design and tried to take all

8 of those things into account as best we could.

9 Q. All right. I think what you're telling me is with

10 regard to all these different factors I'm talking

11 about, all of them are reversible by the production

12 engineers, they're not necessarily reversed, but

13 sometimes they're changed?

14 A. That's right, as a result of testing or --

15 Q. But in terms of what advanced vehicle engineering

16 does, you all put together the vehicle and made the

17 initial design decisions with regard to how to clean

18 up the environment around the fuel tank, so that you

19 don't have bolts facing the fuel tank that may

20 puncture it?

21 A. Well, I guess I have trouble with your cleaning up

22 the environment. There was no -- we created -- we

23 created the environment. We had certain standards

24 that we had to pass as far as the fuel tank crush

25 test, and we designed everything to the best of our
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1 ability to pass those tests without puncturing the

2 tank.

3 Q. I think you're right that my chose of words is a

4 poor one. A cleaning of an environment assumes that

5 there is a bad environment to start with and you've

6 got to do some fixing. Let me see if I can't reask

7 the question this way. You all did the design work,

8 the initial design decisions to structure the fuel

9 system in such a way that you prevented the

10 existence of a hostile environment surrounding the

11 fuel tank?

12 MR. OTT: Let me just object. I

13 think this question's been asked and answered

14 several times.

15 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Go ahead, sir. I think we're all

16 getting there.

17 A. Well, when a vehicle gets out in the real world,

18 there's an infinite number of accident situations

19 that it could encounter. In the design phase, we

20 have a specific federal rear impact test that's a

21 very well-defined test, and we design to make sure

22 that we can pass that test with a good allowance,

23 compliance allowance, and in addition to that we try

24 and use good practice to the best of our ability to

25 make sure that nothing else unusual would happen,
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1 but we -- it's impossible to think through every

2 possible thing that could possibly happen to the

3 vehicle. Our primary -- our primary work relative

4 to whether a bolt would or wouldn't encounter the

5 fuel tank would be relative to the specific federal

6 rear barrier test.

7 Q. Okay. Let me see if I can't simplify the question a

8 little bit. The initial design decisions as to what

9 types of bolts, what types of nuts, what types of

10 attaching mechanisms were put into the vehicle near

11 the fuel tank, the initial design decisions with

12 regard to that were made by advanced vehicle

13 engineering, is that correct?

14 A. That's correct.

15 (Deposition Exhibit 163 was

16 marked for identification).

17 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Now, I want to talk to you a

18 little bit about each of those for a little bit and

19 get some information from you. First I want to talk

20 with you about the issue of the location of the fuel

21 tank and I want to hand you a document that I've

22 marked as Discovery Exhibit No. 163. It's a

23 document that you apparently wrote dated September

24 13th, 1979 entitled Revised Package Dimensions, XJ

25 and YJ Vehicles, and it's sent to a number of
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1 individuals. Why don't you take a look at that,

2 please.

3 MR. OTT: While he's looking at

4 that, do you -- do you happen to know the number on

5 the copy of this that we produced?

6 MR. WATTS: No.

7 MR. OTT: For reference

8 purposes?

9 MR. WATTS: I didn't know there

10 were going to be produced.

11 MR. OTT: Okay.

12 MR. WATTS: I can probably find

13 that for you, though, if you need it.

14 MR. OTT: I'll let you know.

15 Thanks.

16 MR. WATTS: In fact, my guess

17 would be it's one of the discovery exhibits I used

18 with Thornton.

19 MR. OTT: Okay.

20 MR. WATTS: Which will help

21 narrow it down.

22 MR. OTT: For purposes of the

23 record, you may have indicated, I'm not sure, this

24 is dated September 13th, 1979.

25 MR. WATTS: Right.
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1 MR. OTT: Okay.

2 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, did you write this

3 document?

4 A. Well, it would have been published by my

5 department.

6 Q. Okay. And does this appear to be the type of

7 document that would have been published by your

8 department in the normal course of doing the

9 advanced vehicle engineering on the particular lines

10 of vehicles?

11 A. Yes.

12 Q. All right. And would it be a fair characterization

13 that this document is one way in which you were

14 speaking to your superiors and transmitting various

15 packaging information concerning the XJ and the YJ

16 vehicles to them?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. I want to direct your attention to Page 4 of the

19 document which I guess is the back of the second

20 page. Do you see the diagram of the XJ there?

21 A. Why don't you identify it. They're not numbered.

22 Q. I'm sorry, I'm talking about Page 6 of the document

23 I guess. I'm sorry about that. There is a diagram

24 I think on the back of the third page, it says XJ

25 Height Dimensions and then it has a picture of what
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1 is going to be the XJ, is that correct?

2 A. It has a drawing, yes.

3 Q. All right. And the drawing shows the fuel tank

4 behind the rear axle just in front of the rear

5 bumper, is that right?

6 A. I don't know whether that's a fuel tank or a spare

7 tire or what it is.

8 Q. Well, as the director of advanced vehicle

9 engineering for the XJ in the late 1970's, can you

10 give me your best estimation as to what that is?

11 A. I can't remember if we were -- I think they're

12 showing -- I think we were showing optional spare

13 tire locations here. I think all three of those are

14 -- at this time I think we probably hadn't

15 solidified where the spare tire was going to go. I

16 can't really speculate. We did thousands of

17 drawings like this during the development of the

18 car. Whether the fuel tank was located at this

19 point or not, I don't know.

20 Q. Where are the thousands of drawings that you did?

21 I haven't gotten any of them. Do you know where

22 they were when you left or anything like that?

23 A. Working drawings, most of them don't get saved.

24 Q. Okay. So as you look at that drawing, you don't see

25 a fuel tank behind the rear axle just in front of
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1 the rear bumper? You think that's a spare tire?

2 A. It could be.

3 Q. Okay. Can you tell me then how early in the

4 advanced vehicle engineering process it was that the

5 advanced vehicle engineering department made the

6 decision to package the fuel tank behind the rear

7 axle in front of the rear bumper?

8 A. I can't really tell you that.

9 Q. Okay. Can you tell me, do you recall any design

10 work relating to any consideration of using an

11 alternate location other than behind the rear axle

12 just in front of the rear bumper?

13 A. Yes, I'm sure we looked at packaging it under the

14 floor forward of the axle.

15 Q. Okay. Tell me what you remember about what was done

16 to consider whether the fuel tank could be packaged

17 in front of the rear axle under the floor pan?

18 A. Well, I believe we did some design work and

19 concluded that there just wasn't enough space there.

20 Q. Who did the design work?

21 A. It would have been done by my advanced engineering

22 department.

23 Q. Okay. Did you personally work on it?

24 A. I oversaw the work. I didn't draw any lines.

25 Q. Who was it that you oversaw working on this project?
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1 A. I don't remember. Various people worked for me over

2 the years.

3 Q. Okay. Tell me about the design work that was done

4 that you recall?

5 A. Well, it was normal. It's a normal packaging

6 function when you're packaging a vehicle to try and

7 find a space for a fuel tank of the size that you

8 want and a space for the spare tire that gives you

9 the most satisfactory overall package. There were

10 two possibilities on this vehicle, forward of the

11 axle or rearward of the axle. We would have liked

12 to have gotten the -- we felt both of them were

13 adequate locations from a safety and integrity point

14 of view. We would have liked to have gotten the

15 axle or the fuel tank forward of the axle. That

16 would have allowed us to put the spare tire flat on

17 the floor behind the axle, and we would have not had

18 to have the spare tire in the compartment. So we

19 tried very hard to get the fuel tank packaged

20 forward of the axle. We were just not able to --

21 there just wasn't enough room in this vehicle to do

22 it.

23 Q. What are the safety advantages that you see of

24 placing the fuel tank in front of the rear axle as

25 opposed to behind it?
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1 MR. OTT: If any.

2 THE WITNESS: I think both of

3 them are -- can be made -- can be engineered to be

4 safe locations. I think the majority of the rear

5 wheel drive vehicles in the world at that time had

6 the tank rearward of the axle for the same reasons

7 we ran into. It's a very unusual vehicle where

8 you'd have enough room to package it forward. We

9 did not on this vehicle.

10 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Objection, non-responsive. What

11 are the design benefits that you see, if any, to

12 placing the fuel tank in front of the rear axle as

13 opposed to behind it?

14 MR. OTT: In addition to the

15 spare time tire one he's already mentioned.

16 MR. WATTS: If he wants to

17 include that in his answer, have at it.

18 MR. OTT: Well, I just wanted to

19 make it clear he had given one, but if there are

20 others, sure.

21 THE WITNESS: Well, it's like --

22 it's got advantages and disadvantages.

23 Q. (By Mr. Watts): All right. Well, what I want to do

24 is get those advantages and disadvantages from you.

25 What are the advantages that you see from the
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1 standpoint of safety of placing the fuel tank in

2 front of the rear axle as opposed to behind it?

3 A. I don't believe there are any advantages from the

4 standpoint of safety.

5 Q. All right. You said it's got advantages and

6 disadvantages. The advantage that you see of doing

7 that would not relate to safety, is that right?

8 A. That's right.

9 Q. And that would be the ability to put the spare tire

10 in the floor?

11 A. That's right.

12 Q. Okay. Any other advantages?

13 A. Not that I can think of.

14 Q. All right. What are the disadvantages that you see

15 of placing the fuel tank in front the rear axle as

16 opposed to behind the rear axle?

17 A. Usually gives you a much longer filler arrangement

18 which is more difficult to do. It generally results

19 in a long and slender tank which is much more

20 difficult to keep from creating slosh noises and

21 much more difficult to put an accurate sending unit

22 in.

23 Q. Anything else?

24 A. Well, it's next to the -- it's next to the spinning

25 prop shaft of the vehicle, and there is always some
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1 concern that if a prop shaft failed and whipped

2 around, it would be -- it could impact the tank.

3 Q. Okay. Now, you've told me before that the rear axle

4 location could be engineered to be just as safe as

5 the forward of the axle location, is that correct?

6 A. I believe either one of them provides and adequate

7 level of safety.

8 Q. What are the special challenges that exist when a

9 decision is made to place the fuel tank behind the

10 rear axle just in front of the rear bumper?

11 A. Well, any fuel tank has basically the same

12 challenges. You have to get a filler into it that

13 works and fills properly and is adequately attached

14 and adequately protected. You have to make sure

15 that there is enough structure around the tank so

16 that in the rear impact test, the tank is not overly

17 distorted, and you have to make sure that there are

18 no sharp projections that during that test would

19 pierce the tank or cause it to kink and develop a

20 leak. Those criteria would be common regardless of

21 where you put the tank.

22 Q. Do you agree with me that when you place a fuel tank

23 behind the rear axle just in front of the rear

24 bumper, you are placing the fuel tank in the crush

25 zone of a rear end collision?
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1 A. As a generalized statement, I agree with that.

2 Q. All right. And so the location where you're putting

3 the fuel tank is the location where the rear

4 structure is going to crush inwards, is that

5 correct?

6 A. It depends on the situation.

7 Q. In a rear end collision.

8 A. Well, it depends on -- there's an infinite number of

9 rear end collisions.

10 Q. Well, let's just use something with an equivalent

11 energy level of 30 miles an hour rear moving

12 barrier.

13 A. Well, it's not so much the energy level, it's

14 exactly what impacts where, what shape it is. In a

15 normal federal flat barrier test, that's generally

16 the rear end of the vehicle is where you get the

17 predominance of the crush.

18 Q. Okay. And so would you agree with me that because

19 the rear end of the vehicle is where you get the

20 predominance of the crush, you have a situation

21 where the rear bumper and the rear structure of the

22 vehicle is going to be moving forward toward and

23 into the fuel tank?

24 A. It will be moving forward.

25 Q. Okay. And into the fuel tank? When I say into the
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1 fuel tank, I don't mean necessarily puncturing it

2 but impacting it.

3 A. It could.

4 Q. All right. At the time that AMC was doing the

5 advanced vehicle engineering on the XJ, it ran

6 preproduction crash tests, is that right?

7 A. That's right.

8 Q. And one of the things that you saw in the crash

9 tests in rear impacts is that the rear structure of

10 the vehicle is going to move forward and impact the

11 rear face of the fuel tank in a collision with an

12 energy equivalent of 30 miles an hour rear moving

13 barrier, is that right?

14 A. Well, first most of the impact testing was done in

15 the production phase, but I have to point out, this

16 tank location that we picked for this vehicle was

17 the most common location of the great predominance

18 of all the similar vehicles in the world have that

19 same tank location. So all of the problems that we

20 faced are normal kinds of problems that most

21 competitive vehicles face. Our criteria was to

22 provide a level of safety that met the federal

23 requirements and was basically equivalent to

24 competitive products, and we certainly felt that we

25 could do that and did do that.
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1 Q. Objection, non-responsive. Would you read the

2 question back. I forgot what it was.

3 (Record read).

4 THE WITNESS: I think I said,

5 yes, it is.

6 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Now, would you agree with me

7 that because of your decision of where to place the

8 fuel tank in the XJ advanced development process and

9 because you were in fact in the crash test seeing

10 the rear structure of the XJ moving forward into the

11 rear face of the fuel tank, that it is important for

12 American Motors to design the rear structure and the

13 rear structural components of the XJ in such a way

14 that you don't have sharp bolts, sharp edges and

15 other puncture sources in close proximity to the

16 fuel tank?

17 MR. OTT: Objection, asked and

18 answered several times now.

19 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Go ahead, sir.

20 A. Certainly as a general rule that's good practice.

21 Q. And you would agree with me, would you not -- well,

22 strike that. I'll get to that later. Let's go on

23 to a new subject. I think we've beat this one to

24 death.

25 Let me talk to you about fuel
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1 tank volume for a minute. Do you recall as you sit

2 here what the volume of the XJ fuel tank was?

3 A. No, I don't.

4 Q. Okay. Would you agree with me as a general concept

5 that whenever you make a decision to increase the

6 volume of a fuel tank relative to a given amount of

7 space in the rear package that you've got available,

8 that that increases the challenges that you have?

9 Why don't we just agree that was a bad question and

10 let me try it over.

11 A. I would agree with that.

12 Q. It's one of those ones you get out and you just kind

13 of want to grab it back.

14 A. You can have it back.

15 Q. Thank you. And I'm going to give you this one

16 instead. My question to you is when you increase

17 the volume of the fuel tank given a certain package

18 restriction or package size that you have available,

19 would you agree with me that it makes it more

20 difficult to maintain the minimum clearance

21 distances that you need?

22 A. I don't understand what you're driving -- when you

23 design a vehicle, you start out with certain

24 criteria of what size fuel tank you want.

25 Q. Okay.
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1 A. And you have to package the vehicle to allow space

2 for that fuel tank. If you can't, you either make a

3 decision to go with a smaller fuel tank or you make

4 a decision to change the package of the vehicle, and

5 those are the kind of decisions that are made over a

6 year and a half period or so as you're packaging

7 this vehicle.

8 Q. All right. So although you don't remember what the

9 size or the volume of the tank was, would it be fair

10 to say that AMC selected the tank volume for the

11 vehicle and then decided what they were going to

12 build around it in order to meet clearance

13 distances?

14 A. Well, that's one of those decisions that gets

15 iterated. You usually start out on a vehicle with

16 trying to get the best of everything, the most

17 interior space, the biggest fuel tank, and then as

18 you actually wrestle with the biggest tires, you

19 start wrestling with the job of trying to design all

20 of this, you sometimes go back and renegotiate those

21 things. You usually find that it isn't possible to

22 meet all of your original criteria, then that's just

23 part of the iterative process. Basically with fuel

24 tanks we have -- we basically have a range that we

25 want to -- a certain cruising range that we want to

41

EA12-005- Chrysler -034315



1 give the customer, and that depends on predicting

2 the fuel economy that the vehicle will achieve.

3 Sometimes during the process of the vehicle we make

4 changes in the -- in our prediction of what its fuel

5 economy will be. So all those things are iterated

6 over about a year and a half period when you're

7 solidifying the design of the vehicle.

8 Q. Did AMC have engineering specifications that

9 required clearance distances separating structural

10 components and structural attaching components from

11 the fuel tank?

12 A. No, it's too complex a thing to set down solid

13 rules. There's a specific test that we have to

14 pass, so engineers basically make their -- make

15 their judgments on what it's going to require to

16 make sure that this -- that we pass this test

17 reliably.

18 Q. All right. I want to break this down and make sure

19 that we've got your testimony perfectly clear. At

20 the time that AMC was designing the XJ, it did so

21 with no engineering specifications documented for

22 the engineers to follow as to the minimum clearance

23 distances that must exist between the fuel tank and

24 the structural components surrounding it?

25 MR. OTT: Object, it
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1 mischaracterizes his testimony. He has

2 specifically identified such a standard.

3 MR. WATTS: That's why I'm

4 asking.

5 MR. OTT: I'm not saying anything

6 more than that.

7 MR. WATTS: I asked him if there

8 was a standard, and he said it's too hard to have a

9 standard.

10 MR. OTT: He said there's a

11 federal motor vehicle safety standard.

12 MR. WATTS: That's not a standard

13 on clearance distances and you know that.

14 MR. OTT: Well --

15 MR. WATTS: Come on.

16 MR. OTT: It certainly provides

17 guidance to the engineers.

18 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Did you understand the question.

19 Read the question back.

20 A. I understood the question and I tried to answer it

21 very accurately. If you're not satisfied with the

22 answer, let's try it again.

23 Q. Okay. Well, that's what I was doing, and let me try

24 again. My question to you is, at the time that AMC

25 was designing the XJ, it did so with no specific
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1 engineering specifications that were written down on

2 a piece of paper that provided minimum clearance

3 distances between the fuel tank and other structural

4 components surrounding it?

5 A. None that I'm aware of.

6 Q. All right. If there were no written engineering

7 specifications about minimum clearance distances,

8 were there any other documented standards written

9 down as to the issue of the clearance distances that

10 must exist or anything else relating to the ability

11 of the fuel tank not to be impacted by the

12 structural components surrounding it?

13 A. Well, as I've tried to state, it's much too complex

14 to when you look at the way the tank might move with

15 the structure, you might need two inches of

16 clearance in one area where you might only need a

17 half inch of clearance in another area, and it's

18 very specific to each individual installation. So

19 it's -- that's why we, and I don't know of any other

20 companies that have standards -- there's a

21 performance standard. That's basically before that

22 vehicle gets released to the public, it's tested to

23 see if the -- if there is any impact with the fuel

24 tank that causes leakage. In some cases, the fuel

25 tank if you're aware, at that inertia level, the
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1 fuel tank distorts considerable just due to the

2 inertia of the fuel inside. So if you put that

3 vehicle -- if you put the tank in a totally

4 undisturbed part of the vehicle, it still can

5 distort considerable due to the -- just the inertia

6 load of the fuel. So it's a complex situation, and

7 we basically use our judgment and our skill as

8 engineers to design something that will comply to

9 the test.

10 Q. The test being FMVSS 301?

11 A. I don't remember the number. It was a rear impact

12 test.

13 Q. Okay. You had to meet a 30 mile an hour rear

14 moveable impact with a 4,000 pound moving barrier?

15 A. That's correct.

16 Q. That was the test that AMC engineers used all of

17 their skill and their judgment to make sure that the

18 vehicle would meet?

19 A. That's right.

20 Q. All right. Other than meeting that test, were there

21 any internal engineering specifications that AMC

22 published as to performance objectives that it

23 wanted the vehicle to meet by way of fuel system

24 integrity in a rear end collision?

25 A. There were performance standards on the fill. I'm
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1 not aware of any other impact standard.

2 Q. All right. And so with regard to the issue of

3 clearance distances, if an engineer felt like that

4 he could put a bolt within a couple of inches of the

5 fuel tank, as long as it didn't puncture the fuel

6 tank in a direct vehicle in-line hit, 30 miles an

7 hour by a rear moveable barrier, he was fine?

8 A. Well, no, there was some -- obviously we use common

9 sense with everything. We looked at what we did and

10 made sure that it would pass the test. We also

11 tried as best we could to make sure that it would

12 not be overly hazardous in some other foreseeable

13 condition. It's a very difficult thing to do, but

14 those are the judgments we made.

15 Q. Okay.

16 A. By the way, there is -- as part of that standard,

17 there's a rearward moveable barrier collision and a

18 side moveable barrier collision, and both of those

19 were passed.

20 Q. Did AMC run any tests involving rear angular

21 collisions on the XJ?

22 A. I'm not sure. I was not involved in the testing.

23 Q. Are you personally aware as you sit here today of

24 any rear angular crash tests that AMC ran during the

25 preproduction design and development of the XJ?
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1 A. I'm not aware of any.

2 Q. Are you aware of any crash tests that AMC ran with a

3 rear offset hit on the XJ?

4 A. Not that I'm aware of.

5 Q. All right. Now, would you agree with me that rear

6 angular hits and rear offset hits are certainly

7 collisions that are foreseeable to the American

8 Motors Corporation?

9 MR. OTT: You mean were

10 foreseeable.

11 MR. WATTS: Sure.

12 MR. OTT: There is no American

13 Motors Corporation.

14 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Would you agree with me that rear

15 offset hits and rear angular hits in the real world

16 were foreseeable to the American Motors Corporation

17 at the time that you all began designing the XJ?

18 A. Well, I'm not an attorney, and I don't have any

19 legal training. I know that the term foreseeable

20 has some legal meaning that I'm not aware of. In

21 the real world, unfortunately we know that there are

22 thousands and thousands of vehicle collisions that

23 happen out there in an infinite variety of

24 locations, and we do the best we can. I wish we

25 could design a vehicle so that we'd be absolutely
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1 sure when someone drove it on public roads they were

2 running absolutely no risk at all. We just don't

3 know how to do that. We try to foresee what we

4 can. Vehicles rolling over is foreseeable.

5 Vehicles driving off cliffs is foreseeable. I can't

6 think of anything that wouldn't be foreseeable under

7 some condition.

8 Q. Vehicles being hit in a rear angular configuration

9 is foreseeable and was foreseeable to the American

10 Motors Corporation at the time it started designing

11 the XJ, isn't that correct?

12 A. I think I've tried to explain -- I know you're

13 trying to get me into foreseeable -- I can foresee a

14 situation where any vehicle could hit the back of

15 any other vehicle under any variety of instances.

16 It could flip over and turn upside down and all of

17 that is foreseeable to me.

18 Q. All right.

19 A. I don't know how to test for it, but it's all

20 foreseeable.

21 Q. All right. The fact that vehicles would get hit in

22 the rear at an angle or would get hit in the rear

23 with an offset component was something that was

24 known and foreseeable to the American Motors

25 Corporation at the time that you began designing the
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1 XJ as well as now, is that right?

2 MR. OTT: Objection, asked and

3 answered.

4 THE WITNESS: I answered as well

5 as I could.

6 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Well, you answered in the present

7 tense, and what I want to know is at the time you

8 all began designing the XJ, was it foreseeable to

9 you, did you understand that out in the real world

10 vehicles could get hit in the rear with an angular

11 or offset component?

12 A. My answer is good not only for the present tense but

13 back to the Model T days.

14 Q. And the answer was what?

15 A. My answer is that when a vehicle gets out in the

16 real world, it can get hit in the side, it can get

17 hit in the front, it can get hit on the top, it can

18 rollover, it can get hit in the rear from every

19 conceivable angle. Is that foreseeable, yes, that's

20 foreseeable.

21 Q. Now, that's a statement.

22 A. That's right.

23 MR. OTT: That's an answer to

24 your question.

25 Q. (By Mr. Watts): And my specific question deals only
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1 with rear offset and rear angular components, and if

2 you'd like to, I'd just like to have a simple answer

3 following a simple question as opposed to telling me

4 about rollovers and a bunch of other stuff.

5 MR. OTT: I object to the

6 question. He has told you of all the various

7 varieties of rear impacts are foreseeable to him.

8 That is a complete answer to your question, and I

9 object to the badgering of the witness on it.

10 Q. (By Mr. Watts): The question -- all I want is an

11 answer to the specific question. I don't want to

12 know about all that other stuff in your answer.

13 A. What specific angle and what specific offset?

14 Q. At the time that you began designing the XJ at

15 American Motors, was it known to the engineers that

16 the XJ would be hit in the rear at various angles of

17 angular components and at various offset components?

18 A. Yes, it certainly was.

19 Q. Okay.

20 MR. WATTS: Do you want to take a

21 break?

22 MR. OTT: Yes, now we can all go

23 home. Sure, let's take a break.

24 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going off the

25 record at 10:06:18.
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1 (Brief recess).

2 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going back on

3 the record at 10:17:43.

4 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, I want to refer you

5 to some testimony that Mr. Seidl gave me in a

6 deposition that we took in this case, and ask you

7 whether you agree with some of the statements he's

8 given, and I've got a copy of it here if you want to

9 follow along, but starting at Page 72, Line 15, he

10 states that in the proximity of the fuel tank

11 itself, the environment of the fuel tank, those

12 elements and all the components and pieces and

13 hardware and structure that were in the general

14 vicinity of the fuel tank, we took great care in

15 designing and locating all of those things that were

16 in the area that would be to the best of our ability

17 not to provide a hostile or sharp point that might

18 in the event of a severe collision puncture the

19 tank. Do you agree with that testimony?

20 A. Yes, I do.

21 Q. Okay. Next I want to refer you to Page 73, Lines 1

22 through 5. I asked him the question, "Okay. You

23 were trying to provide a friendly environment

24 surrounding the fuel tank so you didn't have bolts

25 and sharp corners facing the fuel tank that could
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1 puncture it?" His answer is, "We sure were, that's

2 exactly right."

3 Do you agree that one of the

4 things AMC should have done was to try to provide a

5 friendly environment surrounding the fuel tank so

6 that you did not have bolts and sharp corners facing

7 the fuel tank that could puncture it?

8 A. I'm sorry, could you repeat the question.

9 Q. Do you agree with Mr. Seidl that one of the things

10 that AMC did and should have done was to try to

11 provide a friendly environment surrounding the fuel

12 tank so that you didn't have bolts and sharp corners

13 facing the fuel tank that could puncture it?

14 A. In general. I'm sure there'd be various engineers

15 that might disagree on what's a friendly environment

16 and what isn't.

17 Q. All right.

18 A. And that certainly is a general rule.

19 Q. Okay. Next on Page 73, Lines 6 through 14, I asked

20 Mr. Seidl the following question, "All right. And

21 that is something once again that was known to the

22 American Motors Corporation prior to the time that

23 it began designing the Jeep XJ, that if you had

24 sharp corners or bolt heads surrounding the fuel

25 tank, that such sharp corners or bolts heads or nut

52

EA12-005- Chrysler -034326



1 heads could puncture the fuel tank when the fuel

2 tank was driven into that, is that right?"

3 "Essentially that's correct."

4 Do you agree with Mr. Seidl's

5 testimony?

6 A. That's a possibility, yes.

7 Q. Okay. Next, on Page 73, Lines 15 through 21, I ask

8 Mr. Seidl the following question, "Question, all

9 right. And you would agree with me that it would be

10 a bad design practice for someone to design the fuel

11 system of a vehicle in such a way that the fuel tank

12 was in close proximity with a nut or a bolt head or

13 a sharp corner that could cause a puncture?"

14 Answer, "Generally I think that's true, yes."

15 Do you agree with Mr. Seidl's

16 testimony that as a general matter it would be a bad

17 design practice for someone to design the fuel

18 system of a vehicle in such a way that the fuel tank

19 was in close proximity with a nut or bolt head or a

20 sharp corner that could cause a puncture?

21 A. Well, it's too general a statement. What do you

22 mean by close proximity. We sometimes have bolts

23 that we put protective washers on that are very

24 close to the fuel tank. That's a very generalized

25 statement.
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1 Q. Okay. And that's a good point about protective

2 washers. Let me just ask you about that because I

3 think that that provides a basis for some more

4 discussion. Would you agree with me that if AMC is

5 going to have bolt heads within three or four inches

6 of the fuel tank such that the bolt may come in

7 contact with the fuel tank in a certain collision

8 configuration, that AMC ought to do something by way

9 of having protective washers covering the bolts so

10 as to provide a friendly environment for the fuel

11 tank?

12 A. Again, too generalized a statement. If the bolt

13 head is against a flat surface, it can probably --

14 the fuel tank can probably hit it all day long with

15 no problem. If it's a long bolt sticking very

16 closely at the fuel tank, it probably does need

17 protection. Depends on the bolt and depends on the

18 location.

19 Q. Okay. If you have -- if you have a long bolt that's

20 not up against a flat piece of sheet metal, if you

21 have a long bolt that's just sticking out facing the

22 fuel tank, would you agree with me that it would be

23 a bad design practice to place that long bolt

24 sticking out facing the fuel tank within three or

25 four inches of the fuel tank?
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1 A. Well, not necessarily. The engineer would have to

2 make a judgment based on where the tank was, where

3 the structure was, what the possibility was that

4 that four inches would ever be taken up in some

5 cases laterally. I think it could be on a stiff

6 enough structure that you would conclude that the

7 tank would always move with the structure and that

8 clearance might be maintained. That's just too

9 complicated a thing to come up with a nice simple

10 rule.

11 Q. Okay. So do you agree -- I mean, do you disagree

12 with the general concept that it would be a bad

13 design practice for someone to design the fuel

14 system of a vehicle in such a way that the fuel tank

15 was in close proximity, within three or four inches,

16 of a nut or a bolt head or a sharp corner?

17 A. I don't disagree. I don't agree with that as a

18 general rule. It's too general and too simplified.

19 Q. All right. And so as the director of advanced

20 vehicle engineering for American Motors at the time

21 that the XJ was being designed, there were no

22 policies in place or no strict prohibitions in place

23 against having a long bolt head sticking out facing

24 the fuel tank within three or four inches of the

25 tank?

55

EA12-005- Chrysler -034329



1 A. As I've testified before, there were no written

2 standards that I'm aware of. There was a

3 performance standard and there was good engineering

4 judgment.

5 Q. Okay. And where is good engineering judgment

6 written down, if anywhere?

7 A. It's not that I know of.

8 Q. Okay. And so as long as AMC was confident that its

9 engineers would use good engineering judgment, are

10 you testifying that it would be acceptable for the

11 XJ to have a long bolt sticking out facing the fuel

12 tank within three or four inches of the fuel tank?

13 A. I'm saying that it would depend on the bolt, it

14 would depend on where it was relative to the fuel

15 tank, it would depend on the design of the fuel

16 tank. We thoroughly test the vehicles. If an

17 engineer made a bad judgment and the -- and a bolt

18 did pierce the fuel tank during the testing, that's

19 a problem that would be corrected before we would

20 produce the vehicle. But as far as a general

21 judgment, I can't rule out the fact that you

22 couldn't have an adequate level of safety with a

23 bolt somewhere within four inches of a tank.

24 Q. Okay.

25 A. In fact there probably are many bolts within four
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1 inches of every tank out there.

2 Q. As a matter of document policy, if a bolt does not

3 puncture the fuel tank in an in-line rear crash

4 test, is that bolt going to be acceptable to the

5 engineers of AMC?

6 A. Well, in general we would look at the crashed car,

7 and in some cases we would make a judgment that even

8 if the bolt hadn't caused a leak in that particular

9 crash, that it was too marginal and it might cause a

10 leak in some other condition, and we would make a

11 change. So again, there was clearly if it did cause

12 a leak it would be changed, but in some cases even

13 if it didn't cause a leak, we would judge that it

14 was not a good design and we would change it.

15 Q. All right. So would you agree with the concept that

16 just because a bolt does not cause a leak in a

17 direct in-line rear impact, that it would be a bad

18 design practice to ignore other bolts that are

19 likely to move forward towards the fuel tank in

20 other impact configurations and directions?

21 A. Well, it was our practice to try as best we could to

22 look at the environment of the fuel tank and use

23 common sense and good practice to try and make sure

24 that there was nothing extremely sharp or hazardous

25 around the tank that we thought could possibly come
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1 in contact with it. It's an inexact science again

2 for what I've mentioned. We know that the vehicle

3 in the rear world will get hit in the rear end at

4 every possibly angle, every possible overlap, every

5 possible speed. It's impossible to test for that

6 and it's difficult to make judgments that are

7 totally accurate. So we do the best we can.

8 Q. In a rear angular collision from the right side,

9 where is the rear structure of the right rear

10 portion of the vehicle likely to move forward?

11 A. You'd have to look at how the structure is going to

12 crush. Usually obviously it's going to crush in the

13 opposite direction that the force is applied in

14 general. Sometimes it can buckle and go off in a

15 direction that you might not predict, but in general

16 you can fairly well predict which way it's going to

17 go.

18 Q. All right. You told me two things that I want to

19 explore with you. First of all, you said that you

20 have to look at the way the vehicle is going to

21 crush, and my question to you is how do you know how

22 a Jeep XJ is going to crush given a rear angular

23 collision from the right side if you don't test for

24 it?

25 A. Well, as I said, the reason you can't test for it is
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1 because there's an infinite number of angles and

2 overlaps that can occur. You would have to impact

3 test every vehicle that came out of the plant to

4 test for every possible situation. We just don't

5 know how to do that and no other vehicle maker in

6 the world that I'm aware of knows how to do that.

7 We use -- we try -- we make certain tests and then

8 we use judgment to try and -- to try and predict

9 what might happen in other situations, but to run --

10 to run a specific test on every conceivable impact

11 that could possibly happen in the rear world is

12 something that I as an engineer don't know how to

13 do.

14 Q. Is it your testimony that no other auto manufacturer

15 runs rear offset tests?

16 A. I didn't say that.

17 Q. Is it your testimony that no other auto manufacturer

18 runs rear angular tests?

19 A. That's not my testimony. My testimony is I don't

20 know how to test for every conceivable angle test.

21 Somebody could run an angle test, but that certainly

22 wouldn't cover all angles that could possibly happen

23 to a vehicle.

24 Q. So because you can't test for all the angles, you're

25 not going to test for any of them, is that your
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1 testimony?

2 A. No company that I have ever worked for has run -- to

3 my knowledge has run other than the federal test,

4 but I've never been specifically responsible for the

5 final testing of a vehicle. So there may have been

6 some tests run that I'm not aware of.

7 Q. Let me -- have you attended any crash tests?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. And with regard to the federal standard for rear

10 impacts, basically what you do is you park vehicle

11 in the impact laboratory or wherever you're going to

12 hit it and you run a 4,000 pound moveable barrier

13 with a flat face into the rear of it directly in

14 line with the rear of the vehicle, is that right?

15 A. Again, I'm not an expert. It's all specified in the

16 government test. I believe that's correct.

17 Q. All right. And as a person with common sense and

18 who evidently employees it on an every day basis as

19 part of his job, can you see anything that would

20 prevent AMC from parking a car at a 45 degree angle

21 and using that same 4,000 pound rear moveable

22 barrier to hit the right rear angle or the left rear

23 corner of the vehicle?

24 A. Absolutely not.

25 Q. Is there any thing that would prevent -- any

60
EA12-005- Chrysler -034334



1 difficulties that would be presented by parking a

2 car in such a way that you hit it in the rear with

3 another car at a 50 percent offset?

4 A. No, you could hit it at a 50 percent, you could hit

5 it at a 49, you could hit it with a Yugo, you could

6 hit it with a truck, you could hit it with a gravel

7 truck, you could conceivably think of 10,000

8 different tests that you could run like that that

9 would all be different and they could all be done.

10 Q. At the time that AMC began the design of the XJ, was

11 it feasible for AMC to run rear offset impact tests

12 involving the XJ?

13 MR. OTT: I object. I think

14 that's just asked and answered unless there's a new

15 element in the question that I didn't pick up.

16 MR. WATTS: Time.

17 MR. OTT: Time.

18 THE WITNESS: I don't know --

19 from my whole history in the auto industry, I don't

20 know of any reason that would stop any company from

21 running an angle or offset test.

22 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. There's no technological

23 impediment to doing that?

24 A. Not that I'm aware of.

25 Q. Okay. Now if you don't run a rear angular test,
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1 would you agree with me that you have to use your

2 common sense that it's likely that the right rear

3 corner of a vehicle like the XJ is going to crush

4 forward and to the left in an opposite direction

5 from which the force is coming?

6 A. It's logical to assume that some number of vehicles

7 are going to get hit in that area under a wide

8 variety of conditions, and there is a wide variety

9 of directions that the structure could crush.

10 Q. As a general principle, when a vehicle is hit in the

11 rear on the right corner at an angle into the

12 vehicle, the vehicle is going to crush towards the

13 center of the vehicle where the fuel tank is and

14 towards the left, is that right?

15 A. That's too generalized a statement. What angle,

16 what -- there's -- vehicle impact is a complex

17 situation. To say that something is always going to

18 move to the right or always going to move to the

19 left, I just can't agree with that. It's too

20 complicated.

21 Q. You know, every other car manufacturer that I've

22 ever talked to doesn't rely on common sense for

23 everything. They have specifications and rules

24 about these kinds of things about what kind of

25 things they're going to test for, and I don't see
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1 any here and you keep employing common sense, so now

2 I'm trying to talk about common sense with you.

3 Now, let me just ask you a real specific question

4 about common sense. Does it make sense to you that

5 when you hit a vehicle at an angle in the right rear

6 corner, that that vehicle is going to crush forward

7 and inward towards the center line of the vehicle as

8 a general concept?

9 MR. OTT: That's asked and

10 answered. I object. Go ahead if you can.

11 THE WITNESS: It's going to

12 generally crush in the direction that the impacting

13 vehicle impacted until it starts spinning and then

14 it's going to crush in a different direction.

15 Sometimes as the vehicles spin, they start engaging

16 in one place and then they engage in another place.

17 It's a very complicated situation. The structure

18 will crush and it will react to the forces applied

19 to it.

20 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Newton's law applies in vehicle

21 kinematics as well, is that right?

22 A. Yes, sir, it applies to causing it to spin and roll

23 and do all kinds of things.

24 Q. And one of Newton's laws tells us that the vehicle

25 is going to basically crush in the same direction
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1 that it's hit, that's -- its initial tendency is

2 going to be to do that?

3 A. I'm not aware of any Newton law relative to vehicle

4 crush.

5 Q. Well, applying Newton's law and common sense,

6 doesn't that kind of tell you that when a vehicle is

7 hit in the right rear corner say at a 45 degree

8 angle, that the first tendency of the vehicle's rear

9 structure is going to be to move inward and forward

10 at a 45 degree angle?

11 A. For some period of time until the vehicle starts to

12 spin, and then it's going to move at a different

13 angle. I've answered the same -- I don't know how

14 else to answer it to you. It's complicated

15 structure -- believe me, I've watched many impact

16 tests, I'm sure a lot more than you have.

17 Q. Don't bet on it.

18 A. And sometimes they don't go exactly the way you

19 anticipate that they might. Light gauge steel

20 structures tend to kink in one place, and sometimes

21 that causes the geometry to go in a different

22 direction than you might think. That's why impact

23 is such a complex situation.

24 Q. Okay. And unless you test for that, you're really

25 not going to know how it's going to crush, is that
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1 right?

2 A. Absolutely.

3 Q. Okay. Now, would you agree with me that a bolt that

4 is facing the fuel tank on the right side of a

5 vehicle, when the vehicle is hit in the right rear

6 corner say at a 45 degree angle for purposes of our

7 discussion, that that bolt together with the

8 structure that it's attached to is going to want to

9 move inward and forward at the same angle that it's

10 being hit at?

11 A. I can't agree with that. That's a possibility.

12 It's always a possibility it might move some other

13 way.

14 Q. Common sense tells you that while you're not certain

15 it's going to happen, doesn't common sense tell you

16 that a bolt that is attached to the right rear

17 structure of a vehicle is going to move inward and

18 forward towards the fuel tank if that vehicle is hit

19 in the rear at a right angular component?

20 A. Well, I'll try one more time. These things are

21 complicated, and to try and answer a hypothetical

22 question about where some bolt on some side of a car

23 might move in some generalized situation, the only

24 answer as an engineer I could give you was you would

25 have to show me the vehicle you're talking about,
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1 the bolt you're talking about, where it is relative

2 to the fuel tank. Then you would have to define

3 what the striking vehicle is, where it's going to

4 impact the structure and what direction, and then I

5 might be able to make some common sense judgment as

6 to where that bolt might or might not go relative to

7 the fuel tank, okay.

8 (Deposition Exhibit 164 was

9 marked for identification).

10 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Well, let's do that. Mr. Renneker,

11 I'll tell you that in this case the largest hole in

12 the fuel tank is caused by an exposed bolt head

13 that's on the right bumper mounting bracket, and

14 there are some photographs that I just marked as

15 Discovery Exhibit 164. Let me show you some more

16 photographs that I'm going to mark as Discovery

17 Exhibit No. 165 and shows where that bolt is on an

18 exemplar vehicle.

19 (Deposition Exhibit 165 was

20 marked for identification).

21 THE WITNESS: Are you done with

22 this?

23 MR. WATTS: I'm sorry.

24 MR. OTT: Can we go off the

25 record a moment while we look at the photos?
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1 MR. WATTS: Sure.

2 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going off the

3 record at 10:39:04.

4 (Brief recess).

5 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going back on

6 the record at 10:41:39.

7 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, have you had an

8 opportunity to look at the photographs that have

9 been marked as Discovery Exhibits 164 and 165?

10 A. Yes, I've looked at them briefly.

11 Q. All right. And the photographs of the bolt that are

12 shown in Discovery Exhibit No. 165 that you're

13 looking at now, does that appear to be photographs

14 of the right-side bumper mounting bracket attachment

15 bolts?

16 A. I'll have to take your word for it. It's hard to

17 tell looking at the picture.

18 Q. Okay. In advanced vehicle engineering in addition

19 to coming up with the general packaging decisions

20 concerning the vehicle's fuel tank and surrounding

21 components, did you all have a bumper as part of the

22 design of the XJ when you released it to the

23 production engineers?

24 A. We had a preliminary design of a bumper.

25 Q. Okay. And in that preliminary design of a bumper,
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1 you had attaching brackets and bolts whereby you

2 could attach the bumper to the rear structure of the

3 vehicle itself?

4 A. I'm sure we did for prototype designs.

5 Q. All right. And would you agree with me that whether

6 or not -- strike that. Would you agree with me that

7 whenever you decide to attach a bumper to the rear

8 structure of a vehicle, that if you do so using

9 bolts that face the fuel tank, that that's one of

10 the things that needs to be looked at from the

11 standpoint of providing a clean environment around

12 the fuel tank?

13 A. Again, we get to your term clean environment. It's

14 something that you would look at relative to the

15 impact testing.

16 Q. All right. And looking at the photographs that you

17 see on Discovery Exhibit No. 165, would you agree

18 with me that the exposed head of the right-side

19 bumper mounting bracket bolt is facing towards the

20 fuel tank?

21 A. I don't believe that's the head of the bolt. I

22 believe that's the end of the bolt.

23 Q. You're probably right. Let me try that question

24 again. Looking at the photographs in Discovery

25 Exhibit 165, would you agree with me that the end of
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1 the bolt which is the right-side bumper mounting

2 bracket attachment bolt is facing the fuel tank?

3 A. It's facing the general direction. Whether it's

4 actually -- my guess is if you took a direction

5 projection of it, it would be missing along the side

6 of the fuel tank, but it's certainly pointing in

7 that general direction.

8 Q. All right. If you follow the projection of where

9 the bolt is pointing, you would miss the right side

10 of the fuel tank by a small portion, is that right?

11 A. That's just my judgment looking at these pictures.

12 I can't guarantee that.

13 Q. Sure. And my question to you is, given the location

14 of that bolt, would you agree with me that anything

15 that causes the structure to which that bolt is

16 attached to move inward and forward is going to

17 cause that bolt to go into the fuel tank?

18 A. No, I wouldn't agree with that.

19 Q. Okay. Why not?

20 A. There are some foreseeable situations where it could

21 go that far. I don't know where the fuel tank -- if

22 you had a collision that was heavy enough to push

23 that structure the four or five inches there,

24 whether the fuel tank would have stayed in the same

25 place or moved that same four or five inches, it's
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1 very difficult to tell.

2 Q. Okay. By the way when we're talking about the

3 number of inches between the two, you see the edge

4 of the bolt there on Picture 0473001666?

5 A. Yes, I do.

6 Q. And do you see how it's on a -- it's got a tape

7 measure next to it that says three right next to the

8 edge of the bolt?

9 A. Yes, but since I can't see where the other end of

10 the tape is going to, I can't really tell what that

11 means.

12 Q. All right. Assume with me for a second that the

13 other end of that tape is touching the fuel tank,

14 okay?

15 A. All right.

16 Q. Assuming that the end of the tape in that photograph

17 is touching the fuel tank, what is the distance that

18 separates the end of this bolt from the fuel tank?

19 A. Well, it doesn't show you what the actual

20 three-dimensional distance is. The guy apparently

21 has the tape horizontal or at some kind of an angle,

22 and if you project it up to the end of the bolt, you

23 get something like three and an eighth inches.

24 Exactly what the true distance is, you can't tell

25 from looking at that.
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1 Q. Okay. Now, one of the things that you and I

2 discussed before is that the early preproduction

3 crash tests of the XJ demonstrated that the rear

4 structure of the XJ was moving forward and into the

5 fuel tank in the 30 mile an hour rear moving barrier

6 collisions that you ran, do you recall that

7 testimony?

8 A. No, I don't.

9 Q. Okay. The record will reflect what you said before,

10 but let's see if we can't recap it for a second.

11 Isn't it a fact that the early crash tests that you

12 all ran on the XJ demonstrated the phenomenon

13 whereby the structure behind the fuel tank would

14 move forward and into the rear face of the fuel tank

15 in a 30 mile an hour rear moveable barrier

16 collision?

17 A. Well, both the -- the back of the car would

18 certainly move well forward, so would the fuel tank,

19 and in the final analysis, they would all be pretty

20 well jammed together.

21 Q. Okay. And when they're jammed together, the

22 structure behind the fuel tank is being impacted by

23 the rear face of the fuel tank or vice versa?

24 A. It could.

25 Q. All right. And would you agree with me that in if
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1 in a 30 mile an hour in-line collision, the rear

2 structure behind the fuel tank is moving forward

3 sufficiently to contact the fuel tank, that in a 30

4 mile an hour rear angular collision, the same thing

5 may well happen as a matter of common sense?

6 A. Sure.

7 Q. Okay. And if in a 30 mile an hour rear angular

8 collision the structure that is moving forward and

9 inward into the fuel tank has an exposed bolt like

10 what we see on Discovery Exhibit 165, this

11 photograph we've been looking at, would you agree

12 with me that it is likely as a matter of common

13 sense that that bolt is going to move forward and

14 inward and contact the fuel tank?

15 A. Well, my problem with the way you keep phrasing

16 these questions is it sounds like the structure is

17 moving into the fuel tank and the fuel tank is

18 staying right where it is. In reality, you hit the

19 structure, it moves, the fuel tank also moves and

20 somehow they may or may not come in contact with

21 each other, and when they do, they may or may not be

22 at the same angle that you see in the pictures. So

23 it's possible that that bolt by the time it got to

24 the tank could be sticking in the same direction, it

25 could have turned 90 degrees. That's why it's so
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1 complicated to make any kind of a generalized

2 statement.

3 Q. In Discovery Exhibit 164, the photographs of the

4 accident vehicle, we see that that bolt quite

5 evidently moved forward and inward into the fuel

6 tank and caused a puncture, do we not?

7 MR. OTT: Objection, lacks

8 foundation. The witness hasn't inspected the

9 vehicle. I don't know if he can make any judgments

10 about what these marks represent.

11 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Do you have an answer for my

12 question?

13 A. The picture you're showing me would tend to indicate

14 a part of a fuel tank that looks like it's been hit

15 by something like a bolt.

16 Q. Okay. And assuming with me for a minute that

17 Chrysler's engineers involved in this case agree

18 with me that the bolt that is shown in Discovery

19 Exhibit 164 causing the holes that you see is this

20 right bumper mounting attachment bolt, my question

21 to you is, as a matter of real world happenings,

22 that bolt has moved forward and inward and into the

23 fuel tank?

24 A. The bolt has contacted the fuel tank.

25 Q. All right. And that would be consistent with your
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1 agreeing with me that as a matter of common sense,

2 in a right rear angular collision, the structure and

3 the attaching bolts in the right rear corner of a

4 vehicle are going to want to move forward and inward

5 towards where the fuel tank was?

6 A. Well, we've been over that ground many times. It

7 looks to me like in this particular picture you're

8 showing me, that bolt did indeed contact the fuel

9 tank in whatever collision happened to this vehicle

10 hard enough to kink it and put a hole in it. That's

11 about the only judgment I can make.

12 Q. Okay. Well, let's talk about what judgments you

13 made back when you were designing the vehicle. I

14 assume that when you were doing the preproduction

15 work on this vehicle, you got under the vehicle and

16 looked for things like this bolt in this process of

17 thoroughly wanting to make sure that we had a none

18 non-hostile environment surrounding the fuel tank?

19 A. Whether that same bolt was there in the advanced

20 phase, we don't do the production design of those

21 bolts, so the first prototype may not have even had

22 that same bumper structure on it. We don't do the

23 detail design. So whether we had that exact same

24 bumper supporting structure attached in that exact

25 same place with that exact same bolt, I can't tell
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1 you.

2 Q. Mr. Renneker, as the director of advanced vehicle

3 engineering for American Motors, if in 1981 you had

4 walked under a prototype XJ vehicle with that bolt

5 where it is in relation to the fuel tank, would that

6 have concerned you?

7 A. No, actually my judgment looking at that bolt would

8 be that it's not overly hazardous, that if you

9 looked under most cars, you would find similar

10 situations. That's not to say that there isn't some

11 kind of a situation that could cause a problem, but

12 I wouldn't see it as a -- something that would

13 happen in half of the collisions. Anything can

14 happen in some collision event, there's no doubt

15 about it.

16 Q. And so your testimony as the advanced vehicle

17 engineering director of AMC during the time that

18 this vehicle was designed and developed is that the

19 placement of that bolt in relation to the fuel tank

20 is acceptable in your opinion given the real world

21 collisions out there that we know about?

22 MR. OTT: I object. That was not

23 his testimony.

24 MR. WATTS: Well, if it is, he

25 can tell me. I asked him a question.
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1 MR. OTT: It sounded to me like

2 you were restating his testimony. If I'm mistaken,

3 I apologize.

4 THE WITNESS: I would not see it

5 as unusually hazardous.

6 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. So if you got under the

7 vehicle back in 1981 and were looking at this

8 particular issue and you saw the fuel tank and you

9 saw the bolt that is shown in Discovery Exhibit No.

10 164, that's a situation that you were going to give

11 a pass on and allow it to maintain or stay in the

12 vehicle?

13 A. I would not have felt that a design change was

14 necessary.

15 Q. Okay. And that's a decision that you're comfortable

16 in making without having any testing done with

17 regard to angular or offset collisions?

18 A. Well, again, I've never been in my whole life

19 comfortable with the fact that collisions happen to

20 vehicles. I've never been comfortable with the fact

21 that there's no way to test for everything that can

22 happen to a vehicle, but unfortunately that's the

23 real world. I have to use my judgment. My judgment

24 in that particular situation would not have been

25 that it could never possibly under any possible
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1 condition ever cause a problem, but my judgment

2 would have been that it would not be overly

3 hazardous.

4 Q. Okay. What is your definition of overly hazardous?

5 A. Something that would -- something that would cause

6 the vehicle to have a much higher than normal injury

7 or death rate in normal usage.

8 Q. Okay. As a matter of common sense, does it make

9 sense to you that given certain types of rear

10 angular collisions that that bolt is going to move

11 forward and hit the tank?

12 A. Well, unfortunately hindsight is always 20/20. When

13 you see an accident where it looks like that

14 particular bolt contacted the tank, you could say

15 that's foreseeable. My guess is if you went around

16 that tank, you would find other bolts in other areas

17 that might be even closer that may not have caused a

18 problem in this particular situation. All I can say

19 is my judgment would be that that would not be an

20 overly hazardous situation.

21 Q. Okay. And my question to you is that's a judgment

22 that you're comfortable in making without any

23 angular testing or any offset testing on this

24 vehicle?

25 A. Well, I guess I object to the word comfortable.
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1 It's a judgment that I know I have to make because

2 it's impossible to run all of the tests that you

3 could -- that you would run to be comfortable. I'm

4 not comfortable with the fact that any one of my

5 customers will ever be hurt in one of my vehicles,

6 but that's something I have to live with.

7 Q. Now, can you sit here and tell me that there was any

8 analytical process that is documented whereby AMC

9 engineers went through the rear structure of this

10 vehicle and tried to eliminate bolts that could

11 potentially puncture a fuel tank in the event of a

12 collision?

13 A. As I've testified, I don't know of any standards

14 that were written and I don't know of any specific

15 analysis that was done. It was just normal, common

16 sense, good practice to try and do the best we

17 could.

18 Q. Well, really what I'm trying to figure out was was

19 there ever a time when Dennis Renneker put up a

20 poster on the advanced vehicle engineering billboard

21 and said today we're going to have common sense day

22 and all the engineers are going to get under this

23 vehicle and we're going to scour it for potential

24 puncture sources and see what we can do to get rid

25 of them. Was there ever a time that you did
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1 something like that in an organized fashion?

2 A. Well, as far as my career, common sense day has been

3 every day that I've been alive to the best of my

4 ability. Now, you and I might disagree on what

5 common sense is. At any given point I didn't put up

6 a poster on bolts, I didn't put up a poster on air

7 bags. There's a thousand things that an engineer

8 has to do and we do it every day and we try and use

9 our judgment and common sense and certain test

10 standards that we run, and as I've accepted many

11 times, our tests do not cover every foreseeable

12 instance that could possibly happen in a real world,

13 and that's unfortunate.

14 Q. All right. My question is, can you recall as you

15 sit here a specific instance or process or meeting

16 whereby the engineers got together under this car

17 and tried to identify potential puncture sources in

18 order to determine whether there was some way that

19 we could eliminate those puncture sources?

20 A. No, not on a specific day.

21 Q. All right. Independent of whether there's a

22 specific date, can you recall a specific meeting

23 ever taking place where the engineers at AMC went

24 through the rear structure of this vehicle and tried

25 to identify specific potential puncture sources so
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1 that a process could be begun on how to eliminate

2 them?

3 MR. OTT: Collectively as opposed

4 to individually. I mean I think an hour --

5 MR. WATTS: Anything that he

6 knows about.

7 MR. OTT: Well, an hour or so ago

8 he talked about, you know, what they try to do, and

9 I don't know now if you're asking him to repeat that

10 testimony or to talk about this if there's some sort

11 of collective effort that went on.

12 MR. WATTS: For Mr. Ott's

13 benefit, why don't you reread the question so that

14 he can understand what I was asking.

15 MR. OTT: Well, I heard the

16 question. I don't need it reread. I just --

17 MR. WATTS: Well, that's the

18 question I want answered.

19 MR. OTT: Well --

20 MR. WATTS: And I'm not here to

21 answer your questions so that you can coach the

22 witness.

23 MR. OTT: I'm not going to coach

24 him, but I think this witness must be cautioned if

25 you're going to be, you know, insisting on failing
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1 to be precise in your questions.

2 MR. WATTS: Read the question

3 back so that I can determine whether I was precise

4 enough for my own comfort level.

5 (Record read).

6 MR. OTT: I'll withdraw the

7 objection. The term meetings implies more than one,

8 so I understand you're referring to some sort of

9 collective effort.

10 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Go ahead.

11 A. Well, I -- in my career I remember meetings on many

12 different times when engineers would be concerned

13 about the proximity of a bolt or an edge, and we

14 would get together and share our judgments as to

15 whether there was a problem, and if we all agreed

16 there was a problem, we would look at solutions,

17 either moving the bolt or moving the tank or putting

18 a shield around the bolt, but not any specific bolt

19 day. That's just part of normal engineering

20 practice.

21 Q. All right. You told me in your career generally

22 that happened from time to time. My question to you

23 is in the design and the development of the XJ

24 vehicle, as you sit here today, can you recall a

25 specific occurrence or meeting where the engineers
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1 collectively got together and scoured the rear

2 structure of this vehicle for potential puncture

3 sources so that they could be identified and worked

4 on?

5 A. Not on this vehicle and not on any other vehicle

6 project that I've ever worked on in my career.

7 Q. Now, have you ever heard of a failure modes and

8 effects analysis?

9 A. Yes, I have.

10 Q. Does Chrysler employ those presently?

11 A. Yes, we do.

12 Q. Does or did AMC employee failure mode and effect

13 analyses?

14 A. At that point in time I don't believe in general

15 that was done as it is now as a specific process.

16 Q. All right. A failure mode and effect analysis is a

17 specific deductive process that is a safety systems

18 approach for identifying potential hazards, is that

19 correct?

20 A. It's a disciplined approach to trying to identify

21 potential problems.

22 Q. All right. And my question to you is, during the

23 design and the development of the XJ vehicle, did

24 AMC employ documented failure mode and effects

25 analyses to have a disciplined approach to seek to
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1 identify potential hazards in the fuel system?

2 A. I answered it once. I'll repeat my answer. To the

3 best of my knowledge at that point in time we did

4 not use specific written, documented failure mode

5 and effects analysis, at least in the departments I

6 was working in.

7 Q. Okay. As you look at the photographs in Discovery

8 Exhibit No. 164, can you see anything there that

9 would preclude the use of protective washers over

10 the end of that bolt?

11 MR. OTT: Which Discovery

12 Exhibit?

13 MR. WATTS: I'm sorry, strike

14 that.

15 Q. (By Mr. Watts): As you look at the photographs in

16 Discovery Exhibit No. 165, do you see anything that

17 would preclude the use of protective washers over

18 the end of that bolt?

19 A. It's hard to make a snap judgment based on this.

20 It's very close to the side rail and I think it

21 would have been difficult to probably bolt anything

22 substantial onto it, but anything can be done.

23 Q. If I could stick my finger between that bolt and the

24 side rail, you've got enough room for a protective

25 washer, don't you?
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1 A. Well, the washer to do any good has to be large

2 enough to increase the footprints into the tank

3 significantly over the bolt, and also has to be

4 strong enough to carry some -- it doesn't do you any

5 good to put a little plastic washer on, it has to be

6 a big, substantial, shaped steel washer. Whether

7 there's room enough to put -- you see them commonly

8 on shock absorber bolts on axles. Whether there

9 would have been room to put a similar washer in that

10 particular situation, I just -- it's hard to make a

11 judgment.

12 Q. Assume with me for a minute there is enough room to

13 do that, would you agree with me at the time that

14 AMC was designing the XJ, that the use of protective

15 washers to cover bolts such as what we see on

16 Discovery Exhibit No. 165 was something that was

17 technologically and economically feasible for AMC to

18 use?

19 MR. OTT: Any -- protective

20 washers generally as opposed to specific protective

21 washers?

22 Q. (By Mr. Watts): My question to you is at the time

23 that you all were developing the XJ, if there's room

24 enough to put one in there, would you agree with me

25 that it would be certainly technologically and
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1 economically feasible for AMC to employ one of these

2 protective washers on the bolt that is shown in

3 Discovery Exhibit 165.

4 MR. OTT: Well, I'm going to

5 object. That's been answered. He says he can't

6 make a judgment about that whether a washer could go

7 there.

8 MR. WATTS: We're not talking

9 about space.

10 MR. OTT: Yes. Well,

11 technologically and feasible, doesn't that account

12 for space?

13 MR. WATTS: The question asked

14 him to assume that we had space. That was the

15 parenthetical of it.

16 THE WITNESS: The general answer

17 to that question has to be yes.

18 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. If there's space to put it

19 in, you guys could have done it with relative ease?

20 A. Well, it would depend on whether there's space to do

21 it in the plant. Some of those things get more

22 difficult than you might think, but, you know, if we

23 had been willing to redesign the whole vehicle to

24 make it happen, I'm sure we could have made it

25 happen.

85

EA12-005- Chrysler -034359



1 Q. You're going to redesign the whole vehicle to put a

2 protective washer in?

3 A. Well, it's -- you know, as I say it's -- you're

4 asking me a hypothetical question. It depends on

5 whether there's room in the line without tearing up

6 the whole plant to put it in. As a general

7 statement we understood the technology of washers

8 and we understood how to bolt things together. We

9 certainly theoretically could have done it.

10 Q. All right. And the benefit of a protective washer

11 is to do what?

12 A. Well, the idea of the protective washer is to if you

13 can't prevent the contact, to spread the contact out

14 with the tank so that it has a wide enough footprint

15 against the tank that it doesn't rip the tank and

16 cause a leak.

17 Q. Okay. The idea for a protective washer is to have

18 the puncture source become a denting source?

19 A. Right, or to at least increase the probability that

20 that will happen.

21 Q. Okay. Was there ever a specific meeting or

22 occurrence when the engineers got together to

23 identify bolts which they believed could use a

24 protective washer surrounding the fuel tank?

25 MR. OTT: Haven't we covered
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1 this? I object. I think we have.

2 THE WITNESS: There wasn't a

3 specific meeting on bolts.

4 MR. WATTS: All right.

5 THE WITNESS: In the advanced

6 area, you have to remember during the preliminary

7 design there are a lot of bolts that aren't even

8 designed at that point. There are bolts that will

9 be added later for other heat shields and things

10 like that in the production department that wouldn't

11 even have been there in the advanced phase. So it's

12 not something that we would normally have a meeting

13 on bolts.

14 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Let me talk to you about

15 shielding a little bit. There is a partial plastic

16 shield on the 1986 Jeep Cherokee, is there not?

17 A. I believe so.

18 Q. It's a stone shield I believe?

19 A. Yes.

20 Q. I deposed Mr. Thornton and Mr. Seidl on this issue,

21 and Mr. Seidl testified that the shield was not

22 incorporated to provide fuel system integrity

23 protection in the event of a rear end collision. Do

24 you agree with that testimony?

25 A. Yes, I do.
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1 Q. Okay. So when the jury looks at the plastic shield

2 that's on the XJ, would it be fair for them to

3 assume that the plastic fuel tank shield was not

4 incorporated in any way, shape or form to provide

5 fuel system integrity protection in the event of a

6 rear end collision?

7 MR. OTT: That's what he just

8 said. I object, asked and answered.

9 THE WITNESS: Very specifically

10 to address -- to try and reduce the chance of damage

11 to the tank by things thrown up from the road,

12 stones and various hazards. It's not designed for

13 collision situations.

14 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Mr. Thornton I believe told

15 me that there was an instance during the off-road

16 testing during the advanced vehicle engineering

17 where some driver drove the XJ over a tree stump and

18 punctured the fuel tank. Do you recall that?

19 A. Mr. Thornton was in charge of the testing. I

20 generally was not involved in testing. Certainly

21 could have happened.

22 Q. Okay. But you don't have any specific recollection

23 of that happening?

24 A. No, I do not.

25 Q. Okay. At the time that you all were designing the
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1 XJ, you were aware that other manufacturers were

2 incorporating fuel tank shields around the fuel tank

3 to provide additional fuel system integrity

4 protection in the event of a rear end collision, is

5 that correct?

6 A. I'm not aware of that.

7 Q. Okay. At the time that you became the director of

8 chassis engineering right before the vehicle went on

9 line or right after, which ever one, were you

10 familiar with the Lincoln Continental?

11 A. What model year? I'm -- not specifically, no.

12 Q. All right.

13 A. There are hundreds of competitive cars. I'm no more

14 familiar with a Lincoln Continental than any other

15 competitive car.

16 Q. Did AMC have a procedure whereby it bought

17 competitors' vehicles and tore them down to see what

18 the competitors were doing?

19 A. Yes, in some cases. We didn't buy all competitive

20 vehicles.

21 Q. I understand.

22 A. We bought some.

23 Q. And the ostensible purpose for buying competitors'

24 vehicles is to see what the state of the art is

25 among your competitors, is that right?
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1 A. That's right.

2 Q. And did you all ever buy a Ford vehicle in the early

3 1980's and determine that Ford was employing fuel

4 tank shields around the fuel tanks on some of its

5 vehicles?

6 A. I don't remember that.

7 Q. All right. Were you aware at all that any other

8 manufacturers were employing fuel tank shields

9 around the fuel tanks of their vehicles?

10 A. I was aware of shielding that we and competitors did

11 of plastic tanks for flame protection. I was aware

12 of an in off-road vehicles again AMC and other

13 competitors offering either standard or optional

14 shields for rock protection and protection from the

15 driving over the tree stump that you just talked

16 about. I'm not aware -- I'm not aware to this day

17 of a specific shielding in a competitive car that's

18 there for impact. There may be some, but I'm not

19 aware of it.

20 Q. Okay. In his deposition I asked Mr. Seidl would you

21 agree with me that at the time American Motors began

22 designing the XJ, that it was both economically and

23 technologically feasible for American Motors to put

24 a bathtub shield, a full fuel tank shield around the

25 fuel tanks that it was going to incorporate into the
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1 Jeep Cherokee vehicles. His answer was, well, I

2 would guess -- I would have to say that it was

3 technically feasible you could do that. Do you

4 agree with his testimony?

5 A. It's too -- it's too hypothetical. For a shield to

6 really do what I think you're implying, it would

7 have to be a major structural piece. I don't --

8 again I don't know of anyone that's ever done that.

9 There are light shields that are put around tanks to

10 -- to protect them from heat. In general your best

11 hope with those is they don't make things worse.

12 They kink and they have their own bolts. I'm not

13 aware to this day of any competitive car that I've

14 ever seen that had a major structural shield around

15 their fuel tank that would -- looked in my judgment

16 like it would improve the chances that that tank

17 would not be punctured in a collision.

18 Q. Did AMC conduct any design and development process

19 during the development of the XJ to develop a fuel

20 tank shield for the purpose of improving fuel system

21 integrity in a rear end collision?

22 A. Not that I'm aware of.

23 Q. All right. Are you aware of AMC ever conducting any

24 design and development process to determine whether

25 it could develop a shield for the purpose of
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1 improving the fuel system integrity of one of its

2 vehicles?

3 A. Well, fuel system integrity from the standpoint of

4 --

5 Q. Of impact, I'm sorry.

6 A. Of impact, no.

7 MR. WATTS: Okay. We need to

8 take a break to change tapes. Why don't we just

9 take a break.

10 MR. OTT: Okay.

11 MR. WATTS: You were right to

12 correct me on it.

13 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going off the

14 record at 11:14:28.

15 (Brief recess).

16 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going back on

17 the record at 11:26:16.

18 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, one of the pieces of

19 optional equipment made available to the purchasers

20 of the XJ vehicle was a steel skid plate. You are

21 aware of that, aren't you, sir?

22 A. Yes, I am.

23 Q. During the advanced vehicle development of the XJ,

24 was your department responsible for the development

25 of the steel skid plate?
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1 A. I don't remember. I don't think so.

2 Q. Okay. It's your best recollection as you sit here

3 today that that's something that came later in the

4 process after advanced engineering had transferred

5 the program?

6 A. It's been a long time ago. I think so.

7 Q. All right. I think you're right. Let me ask you

8 this. At the time that you came back to advanced

9 chassis in 19 -- or to chassis engineering in 1983,

10 did you have any responsibility over the design and

11 development of the steel skid plate?

12 A. No, if it was -- if it was available from job one,

13 it would have been all designed and in production by

14 now.

15 Q. All right. Now, Mr. Thornton told me in a

16 deposition that a steel skid plate was the safety

17 device that was there to provide protection to the

18 fuel tank in the event of an impact.

19 MR. OTT: Well, are you making --

20 you want to ask him to assume that?

21 MR. WATTS: You can assume that,

22 that's fine.

23 MR. OTT: Okay. Because I'm not

24 sure that's what Mr. Thornton testified.

25 MR. WATTS: That's why I brought
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1 all these depositions.

2 MR. OTT: If you want to ask him

3 to assume it, that's fine.

4 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Let me ask you, do you agree that

5 the steel skid plate is there to provide protection

6 to the fuel tank in the event of an impact?

7 MR. OTT: Well, can we define

8 what type of impact? Maybe you ought to start out

9 with that.

10 MR. WATTS: Any type.

11 MR. OTT: Any type of impact,

12 okay.

13 THE WITNESS: Certainly not a car

14 to car impact. As far as I'm concerned it's there

15 to protect the tank from impacts with road hazards,

16 rocks and trees and off-road driving.

17 Q. (By Mr. Watts): I thought that was what the plastic

18 tank was for, I mean the plastic shield was for.

19 A. The plastic tank it was for light things thrown up

20 from the highway. The steel plate is for heavy,

21 actual the whole weight of the vehicle coming down

22 on a rock which you get into in heavy off-road

23 driving.

24 Q. Would you agree with me that although its purpose

25 was to protect against puncture or rupture from
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1 things coming from the ground, that the portions of

2 the fuel tank that are covered by the steel skid

3 plate have the benefit of excellent puncture

4 resistance provided by the steel skid plate?

5 A. Well, I think it improves the puncture resistance to

6 things coming in the direction basically from the

7 bottom of the car. In a rear impact, that plate, if

8 anything, could make things -- certainly it doesn't

9 make things any better. It can kink and I don't see

10 it as something that would -- is necessarily a

11 positive in a car to car impact. It's there to

12 protect from damage basically from the road surface.

13 Q. Because you sold it as a piece of optional equipment

14 on a vehicle that was going on the highways in the

15 United States, you had to test it on the vehicle, is

16 that right?

17 A. I'm sure it was tested.

18 Q. And this supposition of yours that it may cause a

19 problem never manifested itself in any crash test,

20 did it?

21 A. Well, it had to be designed so it didn't cause a

22 problem. I'm sure it was tested and didn't cause a

23 problem in that specific test.

24 Q. And when I deposed Mr. Seidl, I asked him whether he

25 would agree with me that it would have been
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1 technologically feasible at the time that you began

2 designing the XJ to design a steel skid plate that

3 in effect was a steel bathtub shield providing

4 protection not only to the bottom but also from the

5 back side of the fuel tank, and he answered, "Well,

6 it would be technologically feasible to build that

7 as I answered before." Do you agree with that

8 testimony?

9 A. Well, I don't agree it would have been a reasonable

10 thing to do.

11 Q. Okay. Do you agree that American Motors could have

12 designed a bathtub steel skid plate in such a way to

13 augment or to increase the fuel system integrity

14 protection of the fuel tank?

15 MR. OTT: In what types of

16 circumstances?

17 MR. WATTS: In a rear collision.

18 MR. OTT: Okay.

19 THE WITNESS: Well, I'm not an

20 expert in this area. My personal opinion, if you

21 really set out to spend a lot of weight and money to

22 improve the survivability of the fuel tank, you

23 would have been better to do it the way race cars do

24 it with some kind of a reinforced rubber bladder

25 inside than to try and put some kind of a massive
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1 structure outside.

2 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Did AMC ever conduct any

3 design and development process to attempt to develop

4 a reinforced rubber bladder for the inside of a fuel

5 tank?

6 A. I believe there was some research and development

7 work done. I don't know whether it was on this

8 specific vehicle or not.

9 Q. Research and development work was done in 1971 when

10 AMC thought it was going to have to meet a 30 mile

11 an hour rear fixed barrier collision, isn't that

12 right?

13 A. I don't know.

14 Q. Okay. You don't recall any research and development

15 done on the XJ line that related to developing a

16 bladder for the XJ, do you?

17 A. I do not.

18 Q. Okay. Would you agree with me that the bladder

19 provides excellent protection from fuel leakage in

20 the event of a puncture of the steel tank?

21 MR. OTT: I'm sorry, can we read

22 the question back, please?

23 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Would you agree with me that the

24 bladder provides excellent protection from fuel

25 leakage in the event that the steel tank is
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1 punctured?

2 A. I believe a well-designed bladder if it's done

3 properly as it is commonly on race cars can provide

4 additional protection against fuel leakage in an

5 accident situation.

6 Q. All right. And race cars have had bladders inside

7 their fuel tanks for the last 20, 25 years, is that

8 right?

9 A. Some classes of race cars.

10 Q. Yes. And certainly the people out there at Indy and

11 in the NASCAR races have found it technologically

12 feasible to incorporate bladders inside the fuel

13 tanks of those race cars, would you agree with that?

14 A. Well, I believe they have regulations that require

15 it.

16 Q. All right. And if the federal government required

17 AMC to place a bladder inside the fuel tank of every

18 one of its vehicles, you don't have any doubt that

19 AMC could design such a bladder to meet that

20 requirement?

21 MR. OTT: I object. There is no

22 AMC.

23 MR. WATTS: Could have.

24 Q. (By Mr. Watts): If the federal government in 1978

25 for example had required that every fuel tank have a
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1 bladder inside it, you don't have any doubt that AMC

2 could have designed and developed a bladder that

3 would have performed well from the standpoint of

4 fuel system integrity in vehicles such as the XJ?

5 A. It's such a hypothetical question. Generally when

6 the government has after long deliberation finally

7 released a standard, they've done it on the basis of

8 the fact that it is reasonably feasible to be done

9 in high production, and then they generally have

10 given the industry a fair amount of time to be able

11 to comply. So if we make those assumptions, I would

12 assume that American Motors could have complied as

13 well as any other company could have. The

14 government never chose to do that by the way.

15 Q. There are suppliers out there that make bladders for

16 fuel tanks, is that right?

17 A. The only ones I know of again are those used in

18 certain classes of race cars.

19 Q. Okay. Are you familiar with bladder going into the

20 1973 Corvette?

21 A. No, I'm not.

22 Q. Okay. Based upon the recollection that you had of

23 whatever work that AMC did on the bladder which I

24 believe was in the early 1970's, but based upon your

25 recollection of that work, do you have an opinion
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1 that had AMC chosen to do so, that it would have

2 been technologically and economically feasible for

3 AMC to incorporate a bladder into the XJ?

4 A. I can't say economically feasible. Technically

5 feasible, I'm sure if it's an add on to the XJ, it

6 would have caused us to give up significant fuel

7 capacity because it takes a fair amount of space.

8 Whether our customers still would have wanted to

9 purchase the car with the smaller fuel tank and

10 exactly how much smaller it would have to be, I

11 can't say.

12 Q. You kind of lost me there. Why don't you read the

13 question back and see whether we can't get an answer

14 to it. I'm not going to object to it because I

15 think you were trying to answer it, but I kind of

16 lost whether I ever got an answer.

17 (Record read).

18 THE WITNESS: It would have been

19 possible. Whether the cost and weight and reduction

20 in fuel capacity would have been practical, whether

21 our customers would have accepted the cost increase,

22 weight increase and fuel decrease that would have

23 been required to put a bladder in the XJ, I don't

24 know. These bladders aren't just like little

25 balloons. To do any good, they have to be
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1 substantially reinforced. They're heavy, they're

2 expensive and they take up space.

3 Q. (By Mr. Watts): I think your answer is is that it

4 would have been technologically feasible for AMC to

5 put a bladder into the XJ if it had so chosen, is

6 that yes?

7 A. Yes, but not necessarily economically feasible.

8 Q. I gotcha, right, okay. I thought we were trying to

9 get to the same place.

10 All right. I'm going to take you

11 back to the issue of a plastic shield real quick.

12 Do you see any safety down sides to incorporating a

13 bathtub or a full HDPE fuel tank shield onto the

14 1986 Jeep Cherokee?

15 MR. OTT: Any safety down sides?

16 MR. WATTS: Right.

17 THE WITNESS: Well, if it's a

18 light shield that would be there for stone

19 protection, if it's well-designed, I don't see a

20 disadvantage. If it's the kind of shield you seem

21 to be talking about which would be substantial

22 enough to make a difference in a car to car

23 collision, yes, I can see some down sides to it.

24 Q. (By Mr. Watts): All right. With regard to -- what

25 are you talking about a little shield, are we
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1 talking about 30 thousandths of an inch or --

2 A. 30 to 50. A bathtub that would do any to good in a

3 car to car collision would have to be very

4 substantial.

5 Q. Let's wait and debate on what would be good later.

6 But assuming that we're talking about a 30 mil

7 bathtub plastic shield, do you see any safety down

8 sides to putting such a bathtub shield on the XJ?

9 A. By 30 mils you mean 30 thousandths?

10 Q. Mm-hmm.

11 MR. OTT: You're asking him to

12 make a judgment about that right now without any

13 testing --

14 MR. WATTS: Sure.

15 MR. OTT: -- or anything else.

16 MR. WATTS: Well, we're not going

17 to find any testing apparently, but, yes.

18 MR. OTT: Well, not -- I mean,

19 not if you're just posing the question today, no, we

20 haven't had the opportunity.

21 MR. WATTS: I don't think we're

22 going to find any in the past either.

23 MR. OTT: We probably don't. If

24 we had it, you've got it.

25 MR. WATTS: Let's go ahead and
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1 have the witness answer my question.

2 THE WITNESS: Again, it's very

3 hypothetical. It's a difficult to design. At

4 30 thousandths it would do very little good. We

5 have had a problem when you put shields around

6 tanks, then you get salt water in between and you

7 can introduce -- you have to be very concerned about

8 corrosion problems. Certainly we don't want the

9 fuel tank corroding. So it has to be very well

10 designed.

11 Q. (By Mr. Watts): All right. Well, let's go through

12 that just for a minute. These problems of salt

13 water and corrosion are certainly problems that

14 exist with the partial shield that's on the tank as

15 it sits right now?

16 A. Well, the bigger the shield is, the more difficult

17 it is. You have to somehow drain it and make sure

18 that those drains don't get plugged up. It's not an

19 easy thing to do.

20 Q. Covering the bottom and the sides of the tank is

21 going to create a larger salt water and corrosion

22 problem than just covering the bottom of the tank

23 where it can slip in the sides?

24 A. Absolutely.

25 Q. Okay.
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1 A. The difficult part is getting it out. It has a way

2 of getting in no matter what you do.

3 Q. Sure. You've got holes in it to let it out, don't

4 you? Isn't that what the holes are for?

5 A. If you want to engineer the car, believe me, I've

6 done this for many years, and those holes that work

7 when it's new get plugged up with salt and mud and

8 there've been many recalls in this industry on

9 things exactly like that that look like they're well

10 drained to -- if you put a garden hose under there,

11 they're well drained. In the real world they get

12 debris -- it's not as easy a job as you might think

13 to develop a drain that will over a ten-year period

14 of a car not keep soaked, salt laden mud that will

15 cause significant rust problems.

16 Q. Objection, non-responsive. The question is does the

17 1986 Jeep Cherokee plastic shield have holes in the

18 bottom to let the water out?

19 A. Absolutely. That's not the question you asked.

20 Q. All right. And the salt water and corrosion

21 problems that you say come with the plastic shield

22 apparently were designed -- taken care of in the

23 design of the plastic shield, the partial plastic

24 shield that went on the '86 Jeep Cherokee?

25 A. I never said anything about a plastic shield. We're
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1 talking about a steel shield. Let me try and state

2 it again. The ones that just cover the bottom have

3 a --

4 Q. Time out, time out. Are you talking about a steel

5 skid plate or are we talking about the HDPE shield?

6 A. Why don't you start over with a new question. You

7 started with a steel shield a then somehow we --

8 Q. That's where we got cross ways, okay.

9 A. I was talking steel. All of sudden you're talking

10 plastic.

11 Q. We were talking steel, but then I said now let's go

12 back to the plastic shield, and apparently you

13 didn't hear that.

14 A. Apparently. My fault.

15 Q. No, no problem. We just got cross ways and we got

16 messed?

17 A. How about asking me a new question.

18 Q. We're going to start with a new question and we're

19 going to start with the transitional signal that I'm

20 now going to talk about plastic, okay, not steel

21 skid plate, plastic.

22 A. Fine.

23 Q. And my question to you is, are there any safety down

24 sides to incorporating a 30 thousandths of an inch

25 bathtub high density polyethylene fuel tank shield
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1 into the 1986 Jeep Cherokee?

2 A. Well, I'll try the same answer. Do you mean over

3 the -- around the entire tank or just on the bottom

4 of the tank?

5 Q. Let's talk about both.

6 A. Well, number one, I don't see that 30 thousandths

7 plastic has enough strength --

8 Q. But, see, that's not the question.

9 A. Well, you asked me another question. You asked me

10 what I thought of the feasibility. I'm trying to

11 explain that.

12 Q. No, I asked you are there any safety down sides to

13 incorporating a bathtub HDPE fuel tank shield into

14 the 1986 Jeep Cherokee?

15 A. Well, it's too hypothetical a question to answer.

16 There's a thousand different ways you can design a

17 shield. Some could have -- if you can give me more

18 specifics, maybe I can answer the question. You're

19 not liking the answers I've given you up to now. Be

20 more specific.

21 Q. I like it when you answer my questions. Let me just

22 be more specific. Let's take the same plastic

23 shield that's on the XJ and continue it on up to the

24 top of the fuel tank so that it surrounds the sides

25 of the fuel tank as well as the bottom?
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1 A. All right.

2 Q. Do you see any safety down sides to incorporating

3 that type of HDPE bathtub shield onto the '86 Jeep

4 Cherokee?

5 A. Yes. It would be much more difficult to design it

6 such that it would not cause a tank corrosion

7 problem.

8 Q. All right. Do you believe that there are any safety

9 down sides that exist that AMC could not have

10 designed away when it made this decision to

11 incorporate a bathtub HDPE type shield into the

12 '86 Jeep Cherokee?

13 A. Well, you're -- the question is so hypothetical. I

14 don't agree that this whole concept would make sense

15 and that American Motors would ever have

16 considered. I certainly would not have considered.

17 I've tried to answer your question as honestly as I

18 can. If somebody told me for some strange reason to

19 try and cover the entire tank with a piece of

20 plastic, my biggest concern would be to design it so

21 that it didn't cause a corrosion problem. Could you

22 solve that problem, yes, you probably could. It

23 would take you an awful lot of testing and it would

24 be a difficult job.

25 Q. All right.
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1 A. To me I would only take that on as an engineer if I

2 thought there was some advantage to it which in this

3 case I don't see any.

4 Q. I understand that. We're going to debate about that

5 later. Am I correct that from the standpoint of

6 safety down sides that Dennis Renneker can identify

7 to incorporating a bathtub HDPE fuel tank shield on

8 the '86 Jeep Cherokee, your answer is corrosion,

9 otherwise it would be fine?

10 MR. OTT: No, I'll object.

11 MR. WATTS: If it's not -- am I

12 correct which means I'm asking him whether that was

13 his answer. That's his opportunity as opposed to

14 yours to tell me that I'm incorrect.

15 MR. OTT: Well, except the

16 problem is every time you do this, Mikal, you know,

17 the question is different than what the man

18 testified. I don't know why that is that way but --

19 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Did you understand the question,

20 Mr. Renneker?

21 A. I don't accept that I would have used the term it

22 would be fine. You could design it with a lot of

23 mistakes. It would be held on with some kind of

24 fasteners. Those fasteners could cause a problem.

25 The only philosophical major problem I can see is

108

EA12-005- Chrysler -034382



1 corrosion, but to say just as a hypothetical that it

2 would be fine, it might not be fine depending on how

3 it was designed.

4 Q. Are there any safety down sides that you can

5 identify that you don't believe AMC could have

6 designed out of the vehicle, could have taken care

7 of in the design and the development process?

8 A. That's such a hypothetical question. On a

9 theoretical basis other than corrosion, I can't see

10 any major problems --

11 Q. Okay.

12 A. -- but I haven't can't designed something like that

13 because my in my opinion it would make no sense.

14 Q. Okay. Let me talk to you a little bit about the

15 documentation created within American Motors during

16 this design and development process. What are the

17 types of documents that existed whereby engineers

18 would talk to each other during the design and

19 development process of the XJ?

20 A. Well, there was no specific corporate standard. We

21 wrote memos, we wrote reports for specific

22 meetings. There was not any real formalized

23 communication network.

24 Q. What happened to all the memos and reports for

25 specific meetings, if you know?
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1 A. In general they were not saved for any great length

2 of time.

3 Q. Okay. The meetings that you had, were they

4 formalized committee structure meetings or were they

5 just Hank and Joe getting together by the coffee

6 machine?

7 A. Well, there were was all kinds of meetings from the

8 coffee machine to specific reviews with the top

9 management of the company.

10 Q. Were there ever any specific reviews with the top

11 management of the company on the subject of fuel

12 system integrity of the XJ?

13 A. I don't remember. We did review the program

14 periodically with top management. Whether that was

15 ever on the agenda or not, I just can't remember.

16 It was a long time ago.

17 (Deposition Exhibit 166 was

18 marked for identification).

19 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Let me show you a document

20 that I marked as Discovery Exhibit 166 and have you

21 take a look at it, please.

22 A. Okay.

23 Q. Is that a memo in your handwriting?

24 A. Yes, it is.

25 Q. It shows to be written from the desk of Dennis
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1 Renneker, is that right?

2 A. That's right.

3 Q. Okay. Let me see if we can't get through the

4 writing together and see what you said. It says --

5 the first sentence says, "Summary of HSRI report on

6 safety utilities vehicles"?

7 A. Yes.

8 MR. OTT: If I may for the

9 record, is there a date we can place on this?

10 MR. WATTS: No, there is not.

11 MR. OTT: Okay. Thank you.

12 Q. (By Mr. Watts): What is HSRI?

13 A. I believe -- it's a long time ago. I believe it was

14 Highway Safety Research Institute, University of

15 Michigan.

16 Q. Okay. Was that a report that they did on their own

17 or is it something that AMC contracted with them to

18 do?

19 A. To the best of my memory this was a document that

20 they did -- they certainly didn't do it at AMC's

21 request. I don't know why or under what

22 circumstances they did it.

23 Q. It was a study analysis of the safety of various

24 utility vehicles made by all the different

25 manufacturers, is that right?
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1 A. It was a summary of accident investigation data in

2 Michigan on a variety of vehicles.

3 Q. Yes, okay. When is your best estimation as to when

4 that report came out?

5 A. I couldn't tell you. All I can say is it was during

6 the time I was in advanced engineering. It would be

7 sometime between '77 and '81.

8 Q. Okay. After you say summary of HSRI report on

9 safety of utility vehicles, you write, "It will no

10 doubt start some discussion, possibly action. Let's

11 get together on or let's get together our thoughts

12 on are XJ and YJ adequate." Did I read that

13 correctly?

14 A. That's right.

15 Q. Do you recall what you were addressing here in terms

16 of the adequacy of the XJ?

17 A. Yes. Specifically this entire report was really

18 couched in the context of rollover implying that

19 utility vehicles, narrow high utilities vehicles had

20 a higher rollover rate. That was basically the

21 subject of it.

22 Q. Okay. Then it says and B, can we make, and there's

23 some word that I can't make out, improvements to the

24 CJ.

25 A. I guess that's probably practical.
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1 Q. Can we make practical improvements to the CJ. Then

2 it says, "Be careful of statements and especially

3 actions or documentation on this subject." What do

4 you mean by that?

5 A. Just what it says. My reading of the report, I

6 thought it was a very -- it was a very accurate

7 report in the facts that they put out, but they

8 themselves said that it was very easy to draw

9 erroneous conclusions from these facts, and I felt

10 myself as I went through the facts, it's one of

11 those things you start automatically drawing

12 conclusions from these facts that may be incorrect

13 conclusions, and as I said I think even they

14 cautioned you at the end to not draw a simplistic

15 conclusions from these facts. So I was just passing

16 on that caution to my people as to not just look at

17 this thing for five minutes and draw some simplistic

18 conclusion.

19 Q. Okay. If that's the reason you made the statement,

20 why are you talking about be careful of the

21 documentation on this subject?

22 A. Well, for exactly that reason.

23 Q. You don't want your engineers writing down things

24 that could be harmful to the company?

25 A. I don't want my engineers writing down incorrect
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1 things. It's bad enough to be incorrect. It's even

2 worse to be incorrect and document it.

3 Q. Does AMC or did AMC have a policy intended to

4 restrict the documentation of engineers' opinions in

5 the analysis of its vehicles?

6 A. Absolutely not. These were strictly my own

7 thoughts. I stand by them today. I think they were

8 just good common sense.

9 Q. Did AMC have a policy whereby all of the documents

10 evidencing the design and the development process of

11 a given vehicle would be destroyed after the vehicle

12 went on the market?

13 A. They later at the last years of AMC, they did

14 publish a document retention policy. I don't know

15 when that started. They finally did end up with a

16 specific document retention policy as to what types

17 of documents should get held for what length of

18 time. During this time period, I don't think there

19 was any policy, or if there was, it was not widely

20 known.

21 Q. All right. The practice during this period of time

22 was that after the XJ went on line, all of the

23 design and development documents were discarded, is

24 that correct?

25 A. No, it's not correct.
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1 Q. All right. After the XJ went on line, what happened

2 to all of the pieces of paper with you engineers

3 talking to each other during the design and the

4 development of the XJ?

5 A. As I said, I believe it was before there was any

6 known, formalized policies. So each individual just

7 made his own decision on the documents he had in his

8 desk, which ones to keep and which ones to discard.

9 I believe there were policies on official test

10 reports in the labs, but again I wasn't close enough

11 to labs to know what those were.

12 Q. Did AMC have any procedures in place whereby memos

13 and documents between engineers were retained by the

14 corporation itself in addition to the engineers?

15 A. Not that I'm aware of.

16 Q. Okay. Are you aware of any centralized location

17 whereby the design and development documents

18 concerning the XJs were maintained?

19 MR. OTT: During what periods of

20 time can we ask?

21 MR. WATTS: During any period of

22 time.

23 MR. OTT: Because it may have

24 changed.

25 MR. WATTS: I'm just trying to
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1 figure out when all the stuff got destroyed, and if

2 you know, I'd like to know.

3 MR. OTT: I don't know what stuff

4 you're talking about being destroyed. We've

5 produced over fifteen volumes of this stuff to you,

6 Mr. Watts.

7 MR. WATTS: Yes, CJ garbage and

8 you know it.

9 MR. OTT: No, XJ is in all of

10 those documents.

11 MR. WATTS: Oh, bull. I don't

12 have a single piece of paper with engineers like

13 Mr. Renneker talking to each other about what

14 they're going to do on this vehicle.

15 MR. OTT: Well, we've looked at

16 two or three of them here today.

17 MR. WATTS: This is garbage and

18 you know. Look, there's no reason to argue about

19 it.

20 MR. OTT: No, wait a minute, I'm

21 going to object to that characterization.

22 MR. WATTS: I know you've given

23 me everything you have, but I know that there are

24 other documents out here where engineers talk to

25 each other about how we're going to design the fuel
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1 tank.

2 MR. OTT: Well, I'd like you to

3 -- I'd like you to tell me how it is that you know

4 those things existed and that they were destroyed.

5 You're making an implication on the record here to

6 this witness which isn't supported by any facts, and

7 I resent that. I don't think it's fair.

8 MR. WATTS: Let me just continue

9 my inquiry.

10 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, is there something

11 unique about the XJ program that would explain this

12 absence of documents concerning the fuel system of

13 the XJ design and development program? Is there

14 something unique about the way it was done as versus

15 the CJ?

16 MR. OTT: Objection, it assumes

17 there is an absence of such documents. That has not

18 been established.

19 THE WITNESS: I agree. I don't

20 know that there is any absence of documentation. I

21 will answer your question there's nothing in my

22 knowledge that's unusual about this program versus

23 any other program I ever worked on relative to

24 document retention or lack of document retention.

25 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Do you have a recollection
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1 of documents being created during the design and

2 development of the XJ about performance objectives

3 for the fuel tank?

4 A. Not that I can recall. It was an accepted objective

5 that we had to pass the or that we wanted to pass

6 the federal test.

7 Q. Was the only performance relating to fuel system

8 integrity in impact conditions to meet the federal

9 requirement?

10 A. In the advanced phase as I testified before, what we

11 dealt with as far as the design of the tank was to

12 make sure that we passed the federal standards and

13 then also to look at the design with common sense

14 and to the best of our ability try and anticipate

15 any other potential real world hazards.

16 Q. The only written standards that you guys were

17 working under was meet the federal requirement, is

18 that correct?

19 MR. OTT: The advanced guys?

20 THE WITNESS: The advanced group,

21 that's right.

22 Q. (By Mr. Watts): All right. And when you came back

23 to the production group, were you ever made aware of

24 a written performance standard other than meet the

25 federal requirement?
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1 A. I'm not aware of one, but I might not have been

2 there. I was not that close to the lab. There

3 could have been other standards in the lab that were

4 tested that I wasn't aware of.

5 Q. But as a guy that was the director of advanced

6 vehicle engineering and later on in the program the

7 director of chassis engineering, you are not aware

8 of any performance standard that was written down

9 within American Motors other than make this vehicle

10 meet the federal standard, is that right?

11 A. Well, relative to the subject of car to car impact.

12 There were standards on how the fuel fill should

13 work, there were standards on how the gauge should

14 work. There were -- there are many corporate

15 standards, but as far as the actual rear impact

16 situation, I'm not aware of any beyond the federal

17 standard.

18 (Deposition Exhibit 167 was

19 marked for identification).

20 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Let me show you a document

21 that I've marked as Discovery Exhibit No. 167 dated

22 November 3, 1983. Just take a look at that for a

23 second.

24 A. Okay.

25 Q. Does it talk at all about fuel tanks?
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1 A. I guess I would have to check every word. I don't

2 understand the point. This was a -- this was one of

3 a whole series of just periodic board reports that I

4 wrote.

5 Q. Discovery Exhibit 167 is a report that you wrote to

6 whom?

7 A. To this gentleman, Nick Hazelborn.

8 Q. Who is Nick Hazelborn at the time, what did he do?

9 A. I hate to tell you at that point I don't know

10 whether he was briefly -- I don't think I ever

11 worked for him. He may have had the job of

12 collecting the board reports for all of Mr. Lunn's

13 area.

14 Q. Okay. In addition to being written to

15 Mr. Hazelborn, it's copied to number of other

16 individuals who seem to have a little more

17 significance in the corporation I think. Is it your

18 best recollection that Mr. Hazelborn is some sort of

19 a secretary that collects documents like this and

20 that everybody that gets copied is the people that

21 actually need to read them?

22 A. No, I wouldn't say that. Okay. Now that I look at

23 the point in time, this is '83. It's possible I

24 could have been reporting to Mr. Hazelborn at that

25 time. I honestly don't remember.
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1 Q. All right. In November of '83 you don't remember

2 what Mr. Hazelborn's function was, if any?

3 A. I'm sure he had a function.

4 Q. If any --

5 A. We reorganize. This Philip Vante was the first

6 Renault executive that when Renault executives came

7 in, we had quite a bit of reorganization, and there

8 was sometimes we would change organizations every

9 couple months. I can't really tell you exactly what

10 -- who was doing what at this point in time.

11 Q. All right. In any event, November 3, 1983 is going

12 to be right after the first XJ goes off the line and

13 into production, right, or out into the world?

14 A. That would be about right, yes.

15 Q. And you've written this chassis engineering report

16 to all of these individuals on the right side of

17 Discovery Exhibit 167, is that right?

18 A. That's right.

19 Q. Did all of those individuals have some sort of

20 oversight responsibility over the design of the XJ?

21 A. No.

22 Q. All right. Why was it that you were copying these

23 people?

24 A. I wanted them to get copies.

25 Q. I understand that, but what was your purpose for
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1 wanting them to get copies?

2 A. Well, there were a whole variety. Some were my

3 subordinates, some were my superiors. I was sending

4 this information for information.

5 Q. Okay. Who was Mr. Vante and why did you send it to

6 him if you remember?

7 A. I believe at that time Mr. Vante was the vice

8 president of engineering.

9 Q. All right. The gentleman above him?

10 A. Mr. Temple I believe was a brake engineering manager

11 that worked for me.

12 Q. Okay. Mr. Ryder?

13 A. Mr. Ryder was on my staff. I believe he was a

14 chassis engineer at that time.

15 Q. Mr. Perkins?

16 A. At that point Mr. Perkins was in charge of the

17 safety group I believe.

18 Q. Okay. Mr. Nemeth?

19 A. I'm not sure. Mr. Nemeth may have had body

20 engineering at that point.

21 Q. Mr. McDonald?

22 A. I can't remember Mr. McDonald.

23 Q. Okay. Mr. is it Meshaud or Mashaud?

24 A. Meshaud. I believe he was in charge of releasing

25 functions, clerk type functions.
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1 Q. Okay. Mr. MacAfee?

2 A. I believe Mr. MacAfee may have had drive train

3 engineering at that time.

4 Q. Mr. Hitler?

5 A. There is a point in time where I was reporting to

6 Mr. Hitler. He had engine design, and I can't

7 remember, I may have reported to him, I may have

8 reported to Hazelborn. This is a time of great

9 reorganization in the corporation.

10 Q. Okay. Mr. Castaing?

11 A. Mr. Castaing I believe at that time was director of

12 development.

13 Q. Okay. This memo was about the 8400 programs, the

14 8500 programs and the 8600 programs or at least it

15 mentions those, does it not?

16 A. Yes, it does.

17 Q. I assume the 8400 programs would be the '84 model

18 year?

19 A. I believe so.

20 Q. And the 8500 would be the '85 model year?

21 A. That would be my best guess.

22 Q. All right. And so what you're we doing is you're

23 giving chassis information to individuals like

24 Mr. MacAfee, Mr. Hitler, Mr. Castaing as to future

25 model years, is that right?
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1 A. Sort of a periodic report on the major programs

2 being handled in my area for that particular month.

3 Q. All right.

4 A. What are you working on and what's the status.

5 Q. Okay. And chassis engineering in November of 1983

6 had certain programs relating to the '84, '85 and

7 '86 model years of the Jeep XJ, is that right?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. And in Discovery Exhibit No. 167, we have you

10 reporting to gentlemen such as Mr. Castaing and

11 Mr. MacAfee and Mr. Vante as to the status of those

12 ongoing chassis engineering programs with regard to

13 future model years?

14 A. There's some brief statements here. I'm sure this

15 isn't all the projects that were being worked on.

16 It's kind of a brief status of major programs going

17 on for that month in my area. I'm sure all the

18 other department heads would have put the same thing

19 together for their area.

20 Q. Okay. Do you have any information as to the

21 involvement of Steve Krystoff as it relates to the

22 production engineering of the fuel system in the XJ?

23 A. I can't remember. Steve worked for me at various

24 times. Exactly what he worked on, I can't

25 remember.
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1 Q. Okay. Do you recall who it was that was finalizing

2 the design and the development of the XJ during the

3 time that you were first coming back to chassis

4 engineering?

5 A. Well, the design and development was done. The

6 vehicle was in production. So there was no -- there

7 was no -- the initial design was done, the initial

8 development done, it was done, the vehicle was in

9 production. So we were probably dealing with any

10 problems that were related to that, the kind of

11 things you deal with after the car goes into

12 production, field problems, warranty problems.

13 Q. Okay. Between 1981 and 1983 when you were in power

14 train engineering, did you have any direct

15 involvement with the design and the development of

16 the fuel tank or the surrounding components for the

17 XJ?

18 A. I did not have the fuel tank. I did have the

19 exhaust system which is in the fuel tank

20 environment.

21 Q. Okay. Other than the exhaust system, did you have

22 any direct responsibility for the design and the

23 development of the fuel tank and the production

24 engineering of the fuel tank and the surrounding

25 components for the XJ?
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1 MR. OTT: I'm sorry, what time

2 frame?

3 MR. WATTS: During the time that

4 he was director of power training engineering

5 between 1981 and 1983.

6 THE WITNESS: It wasn't power

7 train by the way, it was drive train. Power train

8 implies the engine.

9 MR. WATTS: You're absolutely

10 right. Let me reask the question.

11 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Between 1981 and 1983 when you were

12 the director of drive train engineering, other than

13 the exhaust system, did you have any direct

14 production engineering responsibility for the fuel

15 tank or any of its surrounding components?

16 A. I did not have the fuel tank. I did have the rear

17 axle which is a component that's in proximity to the

18 fuel tank. So I would say the rear axle and the

19 exhaust system were the components that I had

20 responsibility for that would be in the closest

21 proximity to the fuel tank.

22 Q. Okay. Who would have had responsibility for the

23 rear bumper and its attachment to the rear seals?

24 MR. OTT: Objection, asked and

25 answered about two and a half hours ago.
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1 MR. WATTS: I forget what his

2 answer is.

3 MR. OTT: We'll try it again, if

4 you know.

5 THE WITNESS: Well, it switched

6 back and forth. It would have either been in the

7 body group under Carl Mitchell or it would have been

8 in the chassis group. Both of those groups I

9 believe at that time came under Mr. Seidl.

10 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. Who was the director of

11 chassis engineering before you?

12 A. That's a good question. I can't remember.

13 Q. Okay. That's why I was stumped. I knew we talked

14 about Mitchell, but we were --

15 MR. OTT: Fair enough.

16 THE WITNESS: In that series the

17 bumper responsibilities sometimes switched back and

18 forth between body and chassis. So I don't know

19 exactly who had it for the XJ.

20 Q. (By Mr. Watts): All right. Other than your limited

21 oversight of the advanced vehicle engineering, you

22 had no responsibility for the rear bumpers that

23 attached to the rear seals?

24 A. On the XJ?

25 Q. On the XJ.
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1 A. Other than the advanced phase, no.

2 MR. WATTS: Okay. Let me check

3 my notes. I think we're done.

4 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going off the

5 record at 12:10:26.

6 (Brief recess).

7 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going back on

8 the record at 12:11:04.

9 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, all of the design

10 work that was done by people in chassis engineering

11 and body engineering and drive train engineering

12 resulted at some point in time in a proposed design

13 for the XJ which had to be approved by somebody I

14 would suspect, is that right?

15 A. Well, basically the directors approved parts for

16 production. There were periodic reviews above that

17 level where the program was generally approved, but

18 not details of bolts and nuts.

19 Q. Right. So at the director level such as you,

20 Mr. Thornton after you, Mr. Mitchell, you guys would

21 be directly responsible for the nuts and bolts of

22 the design of the XJ, is that correct?

23 A. That's right.

24 Q. Now, with regard to the performance objectives for

25 the vehicle, was there a process by which management
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1 would communicate with the lower level individuals

2 and engineers as to what it wanted this vehicle to

3 be able to do?

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. All right. And what were the types of documents

6 that were created by which management would

7 communicate its directives to the lower level

8 engineers responsible for nuts and bolts?

9 A. Well, the top management didn't usually have

10 directives relative to nuts and bolts. There were

11 during the advanced phases, there were objectives

12 relative to size and weight and how many passengers

13 and fuel tank capacity.

14 Q. That's what I'm talking about.

15 A. And 0 to 60 times, and those were basically agreed

16 to, it was my job when I was director of advanced

17 vehicle engineering to make sure that there were a

18 set of objectives that top management agreed to.

19 Q. All right.

20 A. And that was done in a series of meetings.

21 Q. It is not unusual for the performance objectives of

22 a vehicle to change after the vehicle leaves

23 advanced vehicle engineering and is in the

24 production engineering phase, would that be correct?

25 A. It's not unusual for the performance to change.

129

EA12-005- Chrysler -034403



1 Usually by -- when the objectives are important is

2 when you're setting up the basic design of the car.

3 Once the design is fixed and you're going, sometimes

4 you end up with an actual performance that doesn't

5 meet the objective. Usually it's kind of a waste of

6 time to change the objective at that point, you just

7 say, okay, we're shooting for 28 miles per gallon

8 and we only got 27 1/2. You usually don't go back

9 and change the objective at that point.

10 Q. Okay. Well, is there a point in time before the

11 vehicle rolled off the assembly line or before the

12 vehicle actually went to the production plant where

13 the design had to be approved or signed off on?

14 A. Well, the latter stages of the advanced vehicle

15 phase, there's a basically a program approval where

16 the advanced group generally has an initial design

17 completed, usually has a prototype, styling group

18 has an approved styling clay, and there's a meeting

19 with top management that predicts what the vehicle

20 will weigh, what it will cost, what fuel economy it

21 will get. You demonstrate the prototype, you look

22 at the investment and management agrees to either go

23 ahead with the program based on those predictions or

24 not to go ahead with the program or to go back and

25 change something in the program, and then it's
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1 approved. Beyond that, it's basically then up to

2 the individual directors to do the approval of the

3 specific detailed designs in their area.

4 Q. I realize there's a management approval at the point

5 in time when the pre or when the advanced

6 engineering is complete before it's pushed over into

7 production. My question to you is is between the

8 time that the vehicle program is transferred to the

9 production engineering and the time that the vehicle

10 actually goes to the plant for manufacturing, is

11 there a process by which upper level management

12 approves the program late in the production

13 engineering phase, approves the specifics of what

14 production engineering has done?

15 A. Well, the program is already approved. If there's a

16 problem, they might decide to cancel the program or

17 stop the program or change the program or slow the

18 program down. So once the program is approved,

19 generally the feedback to top management is how it's

20 going, are we meeting all our tests, are we having

21 -- are we having trouble, and basically it's a

22 matter of do we continue or do we stop.

23 Q. If someone like Steve Krystoff with responsibility

24 over the fuel tank made an observation in 1982 for

25 example during the production engineering phase that
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1 this fuel tank is susceptible to puncture by the

2 bolt that I showed you, and he wanted to put some

3 sort of a protective cover on the bolt or a sturdy

4 thorough fuel tank shield that you say would be of

5 some assistance around the fuel tank, what would he

6 have to do to get that approved?

7 A. Let's clear it up. I never said that a fuel tank

8 shield around -- a sturdy around the tank would be

9 of assistance. That was your --

10 Q. Then forget that and let me reask the question.

11 A. Okay, fine.

12 Q. Assume with me for a second that there are qualified

13 engineers out there that believe that fuel tank

14 shields around fuel tanks is a good thing in rear

15 end collisions, okay?

16 A. Mm-hmm.

17 Q. And assuming that for some reason in 1982

18 Mr. Krystoff sees the light and says I think a fuel

19 tank shield would be a great idea to protect people

20 from burning alive in this Jeep Cherokee and I want

21 to put it on the vehicle for safety's sake. What

22 does he have to do to get that shield on the vehicle

23 if he's got a design that he wants to do?

24 A. That's very easy. He has a chain of command, he has

25 a person that he reports to. They report to a
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1 director. They would make their case, they would

2 have an interior -- they would have a meeting. If

3 everyone agrees with Mr. Krystoff that this is a

4 great thing to do and we ought to do it, the

5 director would have the authority to do certain

6 things on his own. If it turned the vehicle totally

7 upside down, he would have to go higher than that to

8 get authority. On the other hand, they might have

9 this meeting as engineers and they might not agree

10 with Mr. Krystoff. He might get into honest

11 difference of opinion between engineers of good

12 faith as to whether we should make this change or

13 not, and it's the director's responsibility to --

14 that's what he gets paid to make those decisions.

15 Q. If they had the meeting and they decide that the

16 shield would be a good idea but it's going to cost

17 four or five bucks a car to put it on, do they have

18 to take it up higher to get the cost approved?

19 A. No, the director is responsible to report what the

20 cost is in his area. So if he reports periodically

21 -- he could make that decision and say my -- I

22 decided to spend $5 more on the vehicle, and that's

23 basically his decision.

24 Q. If as the director of chassis engineering you had

25 made such a decision to put some protective device
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1 around the fuel tank costing an extra $5 a car which

2 kicked you $5 over your budget for the car, did you

3 have the power to make that without getting it

4 approved by higher level management?

5 A. Absolutely. Done it many times.

6 Q. You have.

7 MR. OTT: This is just so I

8 understand a hypothetical.

9 MR. WATTS: Sure.

10 MR. OTT: Because he wasn't in

11 that job title at that time.

12 MR. WATTS: I'm just trying to

13 figure out what the procedure is.

14 THE WITNESS: I've gone over my

15 budget on my own authority many times.

16 Q. (By Mr. Watts): All right. So you're allowed to go

17 $5 over budget for a particular car without approval

18 from upper level management?

19 A. I don't know what -- I do what I think is right and

20 I tell my boss what I did and he either agrees with

21 me or argues with me.

22 Q. Do you have to get approval from your boss before

23 you can do it?

24 A. I don't. I would make a $5 decision on my own. I

25 would periodically tell my boss what I did, and he
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1 would either agree with it or he might disagree with

2 it in which case then we would have a disagreement

3 which happens quite often.

4 Q. If you had a disagreement, does your boss have the

5 authority to tell you, no, you can't put the $5

6 safety part on the vehicle because it puts you over

7 budget? Can he reject the safety part if it kicks

8 you over budget?

9 A. He could. He could fire me, but he doesn't usually

10 do that.

11 Q. All right. Now, is -- what if somebody wanted to

12 put a protective washer around that bolt and figured

13 out that it was technologically feasible but it was

14 going to add 5 or 6 cents a car to the cost of the

15 vehicle.

16 A. Yes.

17 MR. OTT: Is the question if the

18 process is the same?

19 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Do you have to get director

20 responsibility -- strike that. Mr. Ott's helping me

21 with my question. So I managed to get it botched.

22 Normally I can do it pretty well by myself, but let

23 me try this one again.

24 MR. OTT: I was thinking of a way

25 to simplify it.
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1 MR. WATTS: Well, I've got a

2 feeble mind that's kind of straining for questions

3 here.

4 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Mr. Renneker, if somebody made the

5 decision that they wanted to add a protective washer

6 around the bolt that I showed you in Discovery

7 Exhibit 165, what would they have to do to get it

8 approved if it added 5 cents a car cost to the

9 program?

10 A. It added 5 cents, nothing, they would just do it.

11 Q. Okay. Based upon your experience in the use of

12 protective washers, what is the per part cost on a

13 protective washer? What's your best estimation?

14 A. I can't say. It would be a low cost.

15 Q. Somewhere in the order of 5 cents?

16 A. I don't know.

17 Q. Name me some ball park of what we're talking about?

18 Are we talking about 5 cents or a dollar or four

19 dollars a protective washer? What's your best

20 estimation?

21 MR. OTT: He says he doesn't

22 know. I mean, if he can ball park it within those

23 kind of ranges, that's fine.

24 MR. WATTS: I think he can ball

25 park it.
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1 THE WITNESS: Under a dollar.

2 Q. (By Mr. Watts): Okay. And so can we all be

3 comfortable when I argue to this jury that there

4 should have been a protective washer on that bolt

5 that we're talking about a piece cost of under a

6 dollar a car?

7 A. Yes, but in some cases you could have a 20 million

8 dollar --

9 Q. Tooling cost?

10 A. -- two-year tear up to the plant to put in.

11 Q. I understand. Independent of tooling and plant tear

12 up, the piece cost for adding a protective washer on

13 a bolt like what we looked at would be under a

14 dollar a car?

15 A. That would be my estimate.

16 MR. WATTS: Okay. I think that's

17 all my questions. Thank you, sir.

18 MR. WATTS: We're running short

19 of lawyers. I don't have any questions.

20 VIDEO TECHNICIAN: Going off the

21 record at 12:33:08.

22

23

24

25
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1 FURTHER DEPONENT SAITH NOT.

2

3

4 ___________________________

5 DENNIS RENNEKER

6

7 Subscribed and Sworn to before me this ______ day

8 of ______________________, 19 ______.

9

10

11

12 ____________________________

13 Notary Public,

14 County, Michigan.

15

16 My Commission expires:

17

18 ___________________________

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1 STATE OF MICHIGAN )

2 ) SS

3 COUNTY OF OAKLAND )

4 I, Diane L. Szach, Certified Shorthand

5 Reporter and Notary Public duly commissioned and

6 qualified in and for the State of Michigan, do

7 hereby certify that pursuant to the Michigan General

8 Court Rules there came before me on the 2nd day of

9 February, 1995, at 29580 Northwestern Highway, Suite

10 110, Southfield, Michigan, the following named

11 person, to-wit: DENNIS RENNEKER, who was by me duly

12 sworn to testify to the truth and nothing but the

13 truth of his knowledge touching and concerning the

14 matters in controversy in this cause; that he was

15 thereupon carefully examined upon his oath and his

16 examination reduced to computer transcription under

17 my supervision; that the deposition is a true record

18 of the testimony given by the witness; and that the

19 said witness read the same and subscribed his name

20 thereto.

21 I further certify that I am neither attorney

22 nor counsel for, nor related to or employed by, any

23 of the parties to the action in which this

24 deposition is taken; and, further, that I am not a

25 relative or employee of any attorney or counsel
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1 employed by the parties hereto or financially

2 interested in the action.

3 IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand

4 and affixed my Notarial Seal this 9th day of

5 February, 1995.

6

7

8 ____________________________

9 Diane L. Szach, CSR-3170,

10 Notary Public, Oakland County, MI

11

12

13

14 My Commission Expires:

15

16 June 18, 1996.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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MATTER # 1006799

FILE TYPE Lawsuit

FILE NAME

CAIR #

DATE OF
INCIDENT

07/12/1993

DATE OF NOTICE 08/16/1993

MODEL/MODEL
YEAR

1986 Jeep Cherokee (XJ)

VIN 1JCWB7812GT

MILEAGE

OWNER

Amarillo, TX

COURT District Court, Brazoria County of TX

DOCKET # 94C0653

FIRE ALLEGED Yes

DESCRIPTION On July 12, 1993, a 1986 Jeep Cherokee (XJ) was being operated by
astbound on S.H. 249 near Houston, Texas.

The posted speed limit at the site of the accident was 50 mph. The
Jeep Cherokee (XJ) was stopped at the traffic light at the intersection
of Ella Street when a 1982 Mercury Capri, operated by

eastbound on S.H. 249, struck the right-rear of the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ) and, according to the police accident report, pushed it
approximately 90 feet through the intersection. The investigating
police officer determined that there was no evidence of skid marks or
that the driver of the Mercury Capri braked before the impact.
According to the police accident report, the driver of the Mercury Capri
was under the influence of alcohol and charged with involuntary
manslaughter. The police accident report also reflected that the front
seat passenger of the Mercury Capri reported that the driver was
eating a hamburger at the time of the impact. A fire ensued in the
Jeep Cherokee (XJ).

PROPERTY
DAMAGE ALLEGED

No

INJURIES 4

FATALITIES 3

ANALYSIS Based on the available information, including the police accident
report and vehicle photographs, Chrysler Group concludes that the
impact of the Mercury Capri to the rear of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ)
occurred at a relative velocity of approximately 50 mph. This is based
on the posted speed limit of S.H. 249 in the area of the accident, the
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police determination that there was no evidence of braking by the
Mercury Capri prior to impact, the photographs of the extremely
severe rear end damage to the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) and the
impairment and distraction of the driver of the Mercury Capri. This
extremely severe, high-energy impact to the right-rear of the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ) caused crushing of the rear end of the vehicle to the
rear axle. The right-rear offset impact to the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) likely
increased the crash forces acting on the Jeep Cherokee (XJ). Chrysler
Group does not have available information to confirm that the cause
of the fire was a rupture of the fuel tank or that the origin of the fire
was at the fuel tank. However, the police investigation and fire
reports noted that the fuel tank of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) had a small
incision at the rear of the tank directly in front of an aftermarket trailer
hitch and that it appeared that this was the cause of the fire. The
damage to the rear of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) is depicted in the
photographs in Enclosure 3 Public, EA12-005 – Chrysler – 034544-
34545.
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See attached CD 1- 2 XJ Lawsuit – Witness – Renneker, Dennis



SUMMARY OF INPUTS RELATED TO 1984 THROUGH 1992 JEEP CHEROKEE/WAGONEER (XJ) VEHICLES

Name VIN

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice
1. 1JCMT754XHT 
2. 1J4FJ58S0ML 
3. 1JCMT783XJT 
4. 1J4FJ58S3NL  (2) 
5. 1J4FJ28S4ML 
6. 1J4FT38L4KL 
7. 1JCWB7812GT 
8. 1JCMR7833HT 
9. 1JCUX7813FT 

Field
Reports
(EAA

Reports) CAIR Lawsuit Claim Notice

VOQ Inputs
(Name)

SUBTOTALS

0 2 VINs
(
also was
a claim)

7 1 0 0

TOTAL 9 unique inputs 9 unique VINs

20,687,319.1\142778-00045
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MATTER # 01-2681

FILE TYPE Lawsuit

FILE NAME

CAIR #

DATE OF
INCIDENT

07/11/1990

DATE OF NOTICE 09/07/1990

MODEL/MODEL
YEAR

1987 Jeep Cherokee (XJ)

VIN 1JCMR7833HT

MILEAGE

OWNER

Roselle, IL

COURT Circuit Court, Cook County, IL

DOCKET # 92L07772

FIRE ALLEGED Yes

DESCRIPTION On July 11, 1990, a 1987 Jeep Cherokee (XJ) operated by
, was travelling on Rte. 56 near the intersection with Rte. 59 in

Warrenville, Illinois. According to legal pleadings filed in subsequent
litigation regarding the accident, the Jeep Cherokee (XJ) was stopped
for the traffic signal at the intersection of Rte. 59 and was struck in
the rear by a 1972 Mercedes 220, operated by . The
police accident report reflects that, as a result of the impact, the Jeep
Cherokee (XJ) impacted the right side of a 1974 Oldsmobile Delta 88.
The police accident report does not reflect a posted speed limit for
Rte. 56 at the site of the accident or an estimate of the speed of the
Mercedes at the time of impact. A fire report prepared by the Illinois
State Fire Marshall reflects that a fire occurred in the Jeep Cherokee
(XJ).

PROPERTY
DAMAGE ALLEGED

No

INJURIES 2

FATALITIES 1

ANALYSIS The 1987 Jeep Cherokee (XJ) has not been inspected. Chrysler Group
has obtained a police accident report and fire report. Chrysler Group
has limited information regarding this accident and, therefore, is
unable to determine a likely relative impact velocity of the Mercedes
220 with the rear of the Jeep Cherokee (XJ). Because it has not
inspected the Jeep Cherokee (XJ), Chrysler Group is unable to confirm
that, as a result of the impact, the fuel tank ruptured or that the origin
of the fire was at the fuel tank.
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